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Corporate Overview
NGIE

Founded in Chongging in 2004, Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
(“Hanhua Financial’, “Hanhua” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries named as the “Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”) (Stock
Code: 3903) was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) via issue of H shares
of the Company (“H Shares”) in 2014, and has now expanded its
business portfolio to include credit guarantee, commercial banking,
financial asset management and equity investment. As at the end of
2022, the Company had a registered capital of RMB4.6 billion, total
assets of RMB11.48 billion and net assets of RMB7.97 billion. Since
its establishment, the Company has recorded cumulative business
turnover of over RMB300 billion, providing services to more than
200,000 small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs”) and more
than 2,000,000 individual customers.

Credit guarantee. Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.
(“Hanhua Guarantee”), established in 2009 with a registered
capital of RMB3.5 billion, has established 29 branches across the
country and gained a long-term corporate credit rating of AA+. As
at the end of 2022, Hanhua Guarantee had net assets of RMB4
billion, and accumulated guarantee balance of RMB100 billion.
Hanhua Guarantee has provided services to a total of 50,000
SMEs.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Financial asset management. Liaoning Fu’an Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“Fu’an Asset’) was established in 2017
jointly by Hanhua Financial (as the lead promoter) and a local state-
owned enterprise, with a registered capital of RMB1 billion. Fu’an
Asset is the second local asset management company in Liaoning
Province. Based in Liaoning and radiating across the country, Fu'an
Asset provides financial institutions and enterprises with services
such as transfer and disposal of non-performing assets, debt
restructuring, investment management, financing innovation.

Commercial banking. Chongaging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. (“Fumin
Bank”), a private bank established in 2016 with Hanhua Financial
as the lead promoter, is owned as to 30% by Hanhua Financial, its
largest shareholder. Fumin Bank is the first private bank normally
approved by the government. In line with its mission of “supporting
micro businesses & helping startups and enriching the people &
prospering the country”, Fumin Bank is committed to better serving
micro and small-sized enterprises, agricultural industry, rural areas
and farmers as well as innovative startups by innovating the service
methods and business models of digital inclusive finance. Since
its establishment, Fumin Bank has developed a series of digital
featured products such as Fumin Bao, Fuyi Loan and E-Bills Quick
Discounting to cater to the needs of SMEs, which was recognized
by the People’s Bank of China and well-received among customers.
As at the end of 2022, Fumin Bank had total assets of RMB54.87
billion, with its financial services benefiting more than 10 million
customers, and recorded total comprehensive income of RMB310
million in 2022.

Corporate Overview
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
Mr. Cui Weilan

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang
Ms. Liu Tingrong
Ms. Wang Fandfei
Mr. Feng Yongxiang
Mr. Liu Bolin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Ziwei

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Hu Yuntong

Mr. Xu Hongcai

Mr. Bai Qinxian (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Qian Shizheng (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Ng Leung Sing (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (Retired on 16 October 2022)

SUPERVISORS

Mr. He Zhonghua

Mr. He Yu

Mr. Chen Zhonghua

Mr. Li Ruping (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Ms. Qin Yong (Retired on 16 October 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hu Yuntong (Independent Non-executive Director) (Chairman)

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Wei (Independent Non-executive Director)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cao Ziwei (Independent Non-executive Director) (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director)
Mr. Xu Hongcai (Independent Non-executive Director)
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STRATEGIC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Wei (Independent Non-executive Director) (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director)
Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director) (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director)
Ms. Liu Tingrong (Non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ren Weidong

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director)
Mr. Ren Weidong (Company Secretary)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

6-9, Building 2, 11 East Honghu Road
Yubei District

Chongging

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Rm 1203, 12/F, Man Yee Building
68 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

HEAD OFFICES IN THE PRC

1st Floor, Building A, No. 2 Fortune Tower
No. 15 Caifu Avenue

Chongging

PRC

and

No. 1B Beizhong Street,
Inner Dongzhimen
Dongcheng District
Beijing

PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
No. 25 Financial Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)
No. 7088 Shennan Boulevard

Futian District

Shenzhen

Guangdong Province

PRC
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AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY

Jones Day

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hanhua.com

STOCK CODE

3903
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Financial Summary

M=

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) (BR BB AN LARBBEETIIR)

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2022 20214 20204 2019%F 2018%F
Operating results REEE
Operating income ZEWA 601.5 858.2 1,154.0 1,246.8 1,509.6
Profit before taxation AT 109.5 164.1 303.4 4226 459.5
Net profit FHE 52.0 112.3 208.0 293.0 328.5
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEBE 11,483.6 12,357.1 14,863.6 17,526.5 18,845.7
Total liabilities BERE 3,514.0 4,319.8 6,766.7 9,613.9 10,981.8
Net assets BEFR 7,969.6 8,037.3 8,096.9 79126 7,863.9
Profitability indicators BRgENEE
Pre-tax profit margin! HETREERO 18.2% 19.1% 26.3% 33.9% 30.4%
Net profit margin® FRIEER 8.6% 13.1% 18.0% 23.5% 21.8%
Return on average total assets® FHBEERRRC 0.4% 0.8% 1.3% 1.6% 1.7%
Return on average shareholders’ equity ¥R E iz 0 = 0.6% 1.4% 2.6% 3.7% 4.1%
Notes: R
(1) Profit before taxation divided by operating income. (1) TBEARTAERIAZERA -
(2)  Net profit divided by operating income. 2 FFHEBRUAEERA-

(3) Net profit divided by average balance of total assets as at the (3) FFHEBRABYIREIKRE B EEREE
beginning and end of the year.

(4)  Net profit divided by average balance of shareholders’ equity as at the (4)  FFIEBR LA B ) K B SR 89 T 19 BR SR A 2 AR
beginning and end of the year. LER

(5) To facilitate comparison, some historical figures are restated on new (6) AAHBELE FHELBIEDIZBHO
calculation basis or logic. OB EEITENI R

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE



Tough times never last, but tough people do. China’s economic and
social development has finally got back on track as the prolonged
novel coronavirus pandemic (the “COVID-19 pandemic”) was put
to an end. Looking back on our operations in 2022, we fought a
hard fight. Despite the prudent deployment and optimization of
management by our management team, our performance declined
to a certain extent as SMEs in the real sector were reluctant
to expand their businesses through financing amidst a general
market downturn. On the other hand, however, our management
braved the challenges with a positive mindset, proactively seized
the opportunities brought about by industrial digitalization and
financial technology through unified strategic deployment and
management reforms, and thus achieved remarkable results in
digital transformation.

In terms of our digital service segment, we applied artificial
intelligence, big data, blockchain and other technological means and
built upon our financial technology (“fintech”) system and digital risk
control model to cater to the needs of downstream customers and
provide standardized, automated and batch-based fintech services
for micro, small and medium-sized enterprises (“MSMEs”) and
individual customers in specific transaction scenarios and industrial
chains, which received good market response. In particular, our
electronic guarantee business recorded rapid growth in the number
of customers and transactions in 2022, with outstanding guarantee
balance increasing by 50% year on year. Our electronic guarantee
products effectively reduced the transaction costs of market entities,
reduced the burden of SMEs, boosted the vitality of market entities,
and improved transaction efficiency. By the end of 2022, Hanhua’
electronic guarantee business has been put into operation in more
than 258 urban public resources trading centres in 27 provinces
across the country, with the largest coverage rate in the country,
providing support to more than 50,000 MSMEs.

Chairman’s Report
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Chairman’s Report

EERME

In terms of our digital finance segment, among which, Fumin
Bank managed to maintain stable profitability amid an unfavorable
complex market environment, and recorded total comprehensive
income of RMB310 million in 2022. In addition, our digital electronic
bill business recorded a cumulative transaction volume of RMB3
trillion, providing services to 156,000 SMEs, ranking among the top
in the industry.

As China is entering a new phase of COVID-19 response, economic
activity will soon revive. We believe that serving MSMEs in the real
economy, serving the industries closely related to people’s livelihood,
supporting the digital upgrading of real industries, providing capital
support for quality enterprises and revitalizing non-performing
assets are activities that are in line with national strategies and the
corporate commitments to create value for society. Digital services,
digital finance, capital investment and financial asset management
will see a new phase of rapid growth as China is poised to push for
post-pandemic economic recovery with all-out efforts.

Looking ahead in 2023, we will continue to align ourselves with Xi
Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a
New Era, adhere to the belief that financial services should serve
the real economy, uphold fundamental principles and break new
grounds, starting a new chapter in our journey.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

After years of development and continuous exploration, the Group
has successfully established a professional, standardized and
inclusive market brand, and accumulated extensive resources in
terms of business licenses, management teams, technologies
and market networks. The trend of developing digital economy
brings unprecedented challenges and valuable opportunities for
our development. After in-depth study and thorough deliberations,
the Group has decided to promote digital transformation in an
all-rounded manner, shifting from seeking multiple licenses and
exploring multi-domains to focusing on its core businesses and
changing the way it acquires customers and provides services
through a comprehensive digital transformation, so as to enhance
operating efficiency, reduce marginal costs and thus improve
profitability. By building upon our ample resources such as licenses,
teams, technologies and channels developed over the years,
especially our mature large-scale operation and management
systems for inclusive finance, we have selected, explored and
leveraged our existing strengths to build digital business ecosystem
and scenarios, and consolidate and enhance our competitiveness
in the inclusive finance sector, laying a sound foundation for rapid
and sustainable business growth in the future. Based on our digital
transformation strategy, the Group’s operations are divided into
four business segments, namely the digital services segment, the
digital finance segment, the capital investment and financial asset
management segment and the others segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

DIGITAL SERVICES SEGMENT

The digital services segment, building upon our financial technology
system and digital risk control model, provides standardized,
automated and batch-based fintech services for MSMEs and
individual customers in specific transaction scenarios and industrial
chains, mainly including electronic guarantee, and micro and small-
sized businesses targeted fintech information services. The profit
before tax of the digital services segment in 2022 amounted to
RMB159.0 million, representing an increase of RMB92.7 million or
139.8% as compared with RMB66.3 million in 2021, mainly due
to the continuous growth of electronic guarantee business and the
reversal for guarantee losses.

Digital services segment - Credit guarantee - Business
expansion and products

The credit guarantee business of the digital services segment,
targeting business opportunities in connection with transaction
scenarios and industrial chains, uses cutting-edge technologies
such as artificial intelligence, big data, cloud computing and
blockchain to build an “Internet + Supply Chain” inclusive financial
service platform serving the financial needs of upstream and
downstream core enterprises and entities in each link of the
industrial chains, with a view to providing convenient, efficient and
diversified integrated financial services for supply chain enterprises,
especially MSMEs. Customers only need to submit their applications
through the client terminal, and the intelligent risk control system
will automatically and quickly assess whether such applications are
qualified through artificial intelligence, big data and other technical
means, without human intervention throughout the process, thereby
reducing operational risks while reducing labor costs and improving
efficiency.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the key performance indicators of the
credit guarantee business of the Group’s digital services segment
as at the dates indicated:

BEREN WD

TREINRFARABRAEEHFCLRY
DEEREREREBHBRERKER

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2022 2021 Change
2022F 20214 =

Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount  Amount  Amount %
(BREEFBEIN UARBEBHETLIIR) TH S R B H%
Product distribution of ERHBERERDMH:

outstanding guarantee:
Financing guarantee A& ER 98.2 267.9 (169.7) (63.3)
Non-financing guarantee FEmL & IR 16,857.1 10,940.6  5,916.5 54.1
Total outstanding guarantee balance ERBEEET 16,955.3 11,208.5  5,746.8 51.3
Balance of provisions for guarantee losses {ERESEREEH S 31.0 76.5 (45.5) (59.5)
Provision rate (" BE=O 0.2% 0.7% (0.5 ppt -
ERx:)

Note: R

(1)  Balance of provisions for guarantee losses divided by the outstanding
guarantee balance.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding guarantee balance of
credit guarantee business of the digital services segment amounted
to RMB16,955.3 million, representing an increase of RMB5,746.8
million or 51.3% as compared with RMB11,208.5 million as at
31 December 2021, mainly due to the growth of non-financing
guarantee business.

The financing guarantee business of the digital services segment
includes bank financing guarantee and other non-bank corporate
financing guarantee. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding
guarantee balance of financing guarantee business of the digital
service segment was RMB98.2 million, representing a decrease of
RMB169.7 million or 63.3% as compared with RMB267.9 million as
at 31 December 2021.

(1) BEREEEGSHRBRIAERSR-

B E2022F12A318 A& BB F1(L AR
BOBEREREEERBEARARE
16,955.3H & T &%2021F12A31H &
REFEEARB11,208.56B8 T #EmMA
R#¥5,746.8B B L HBIE51.3% £ &
FRRIEMEEREBHER -

HTREDBBHERREEBERT
ERERERMEMIFROTEBEERE
ER-EHE2022F12A31H  HF(LR
BOMBEEREBERBBAAR
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HEARE2079BE T BLARE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

The non-financial guarantee products of the digital services segment
mainly include electronic guarantees. The electronic guarantee
platform developed by the Group for bidding and procurement
have been put into operation in 258 urban public resources trading
centres in 27 provinces across the country. As at 31 December
2022, the outstanding balance of non-financing guarantee
business of the digital services segment was RMB16,857.1 million,
representing an increase of RMB5,916.5 million or 54.1% as
compared with RMB10,940.6 million as at 31 December 2021.

Digital services segment - Credit guarantee - Risk
management and assets quality

The following table sets forth key asset quality indicators of credit
guarantee business of the digital services segment as at the dates
indicated:

HTERBOBHEBEEREMNTER
BEFRE-AEEHAENBRERES
FRUEREEZB27EA K H2581[
BHAHERRZH L EBRET-HE
2022F 128318 Bt F (L BR 7% © 2B IE @b
BEREGHBBERAARK16,85718 8
T B2021F12 A1 B ER BB ARE
10,940.6B &L LN A R¥5916.58

e —

Br EiE54.1% °

BFLREIB-EHER-BEBRE
EREEBEE

TREINRARBBRBEFRE D EE
RERXGSHRMREEEERF:

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFEE
2022 2021 Change
2022%F 20214 23

Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(BREEFBEIN UARBEBHETLIIR) TH T T &7 H %
Default rate ® REERO 0.01% 0.07% (0.06 ppt -

ERE)

Default payments BRI 6.6 18.6 (12.0) (64.5)
Guarantees released ERRER R 49,699.5 28,365.2 21,334.3 75.2

Note:

(1)  Default payments made on behalf of defaulting clients divided by the
amount of guarantees released.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2022, the total default payments paid for defaulting clients of
credit guarantee business of the digital services segment amounted
to RMB6.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB12.0 million or
64.5% as compared with RMB18.6 million in 2021. Meanwhile,
the default rate of credit guarantee business of the digital services
segment decreased to 0.01% in 2022 (2021: 0.07%). The default
payments and default rate of credit guarantee business of the
digital service segment remained at low levels, which was mainly
due to the following: (i) the guarantee products of the digital
service segment are developed and designed based on the
upstream and downstream industry chains of core enterprises
and specific transaction scenarios, and the flows of goods and
funds during transaction process are monitored by means of digital
technology; and (ii) the guarantee business of the digital services
segment features a large number of individual transactions in small
amounts, which helps reduce risk concentration. In addition, we
have accumulated extensive experience in serving a wide range of
MSMEs over the years. In particular, we have established a sound
system for risk warning, risk control and risk mitigation, and further
improved our risk control level through digital technology.

As at 31 December 2022, the provision rate of credit guarantee
business of the digital services segment was 0.2% (31 December
2021: 0.7%), which was maintained at an appropriate level.

Digital services segment - Micro and small-sized
businesses targeted fintech information services

Micro and small-sized businesses targeted fintech information
services is mainly credit consulting business, which refers to
the Group’s provision of credit consulting services to financial
institutions such as external partner banks by leveraging its
accumulated experience, capabilities and strengths in micro and
small loan services, and relying on its intelligent fintech capability,
using customized technology and financial services as means,
including assistance in obtaining clients, standardized risk
assessment services and post-loan management service, whereby
we charge external partner financial institutions credit consulting
services commission; while external partner financial institutions
conduct independent evaluation on small and micro customers
based on their own understanding of small and micro customers
and risk tolerance, and make independent decision about whether
to provide services.
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In the course of cooperation with various financial institutions,
both parties share information, exchange resources, and give full
play to their resource and technological advantages, with a view
to jointly provide comprehensive financial services to small and
micro customers. The Group’s strengths lie in its risk awareness
and experience built on serving customer groups over the years in
the small and micro customer sector, as well as special risk control
capacities, nationwide network and team, and sound credit service
output capability.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the Group’s
balance under management of the credit consulting business was
RMB4,134.1 million and RMB4,129.1 million, respectively. In view
of the macroeconomic situation, the revenue of the Group’s credit
consulting business decreased. The Group’s credit consulting
services commission income decreased from RMB138.4 million in
2021 to RMB93.4 million in 2022.

DIGITAL FINANCE SEGMENT

The digital finance segment provides offline financing products and
guarantee services for MSMEs and individual customers through
our financing guarantee and financial factoring companies, mainly
including bond guarantee, performance guarantee, entrusted
loans and receivables factoring. This segment also covers the
Company’s equity investment in commercial banking. In 2022, the
digital finance segment recorded profit before tax of RMB140.2
million, representing a decrease of RMB102.3 million or 42.2% as
compared with RMB242.5 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly
due to the fact that most SMEs adopted a more conservative
development strategy in view of the prevailing economic conditions
and thus had less financing demand, which led to a continuous
decline in the new credit guarantee business of the digital finance
segment and, in turn, a decline in guarantee and consulting fee
income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Digital finance segment - Credit guarantee - Business
expansion and products

In order to meet the various guarantee service needs of individual
customers, the credit guarantee business of the digital finance
segment designs the optimal solution for each customer based on
the customer’s own characteristics. Thus such solutions vary in loan
amount, loan term and counter-guarantee measures from customer
to customer, and are subject to consideration and approval of
the review meeting at corresponding level. The credit guarantee
business of the digital finance segment includes traditional financing
guarantee, bond guarantee and project performance guarantee.

The following table sets forth the key performance indicators of the
credit guarantee business of the Group’s digital finance segment as
at the dates indicated:
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BREEMR
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As at 31 December

HZ=12H31H
2022 2021 Change
20224 20214F p=
Percentage

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %

(BRBEFBEIN UAREBEETTIIR) ] Ea- 2B BHSL%

Product distribution of ERBEEZEERS M
outstanding guarantee:

Financing guarantee B & ER 13,411.5 15,8435 (2,432.0) (15.4)
— Traditional financing guarantee —EHmEER 2,587.3 3,884.5 (1,297.2) (33.4)
- Bond guarantee —EHER 10,824.2  11,959.0 (1,134.8) (9.5)

Non-financing guarantee FERLE IR 3,777.4 5,400.1 (1,622.7) (30.0)

Total outstanding guarantee balance  FE{REAZEA & 17,188.9  21,243.6 (4,054.7) (19.1)

Balance of provisions for EREELEEDHE 99.1 245.6 (146.5) (59.6)
guarantee losses

Provision rate BEE 0.6% 1.2% (0.6 ppt -

ERE0)

Being affected by domestic economic situation, the size of
credit guarantee business of the Group’s digital finance segment
decreased in 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding
guarantee balance of credit guarantee business of the digital
finance segment was RMB17,188.9 million, representing a decrease
of RMB4,054.7 million or 19.1% as compared with RMB21,243.6
million as at 31 December 2021.
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Digital finance segment - Credit guarantee - Risk
management and assets quality

The following table sets forth key assets quality indicators of credit
guarantee business of the digital finance segment as at the dates
indicated:

BFtesmoB-FRAER-BARE
EREEEE

TERFIRARABBHEFERD BE
RERXGERMAREELERT:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021 Change
2022%F 20214 =)

Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(BREEFAN ARARBEBETIR) 28 £l TR B2t %
Default rate REX 0.3% 0.8% (0.5 ppt -

BOH)

Default payments BT 44.6 147.2 (102.6) (69.7)
Guarantees released TR EIR 13,076.4  17,786.6 (4,710.2) (26.5)

In 2022, the total default payments paid for defaulting clients
of credit guarantee business of the digital finance segment was
RMB44.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB102.6 million
or 69.7% as compared with RMB147.2 million in 2021. In 2022,
the default rate of credit guarantee business of the digital finance
segment was 0.3% (2021: 0.8%). The default payments and default
rate of credit guarantee business of the digital finance segment both
decreased.

We have always adhered to a prudent valuation system and made
adequate provisions for outstanding credit guarantee business.
As at 31 December 2022, the provision rate of credit guarantee
business of the digital finance segment was 0.6% (31 December
2021: 1.2%).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Digital finance segment - Entrusted loans

The Group’s digital finance segment provides entrusted loans to
meet the individualized funding needs of a wide range of SMEs. In
2022, the Group proactively adjusted its business mix and granted
more entrusted loans to quality customers. As at 31 December
2022, the balance of entrusted loan business of the Group’s digital
finance segment was RMB1,916.7 million, representing an increase
of RMB1,218.4 million as compared with RMB698.3 million as
at 31 December 2021. In 2022, the average interest rate of the
Group’s entrusted loan business was approximately 9.4% (2021:
approximately 9.3%).

The following table sets forth an analysis of the balance of entrusted
loans of the digital finance segment by risk exposure as at the dates
indicated:
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As at 31 December

H#Z12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREFRIN AAREBFETIIR) THE LHEEY% TEE 1LAAEE%
Not more than RMB5 million ARERAHEILANR 53.9 2.8 40.9 5.9
Above RMB5 million but not AREBEABETUALEE

more than RMB10 million ARE—TET 91.4 4.8 132.3 18.9
Above RMB10 million but not ARE—FETLULERE

more than RMB30 million ARE=TET 459.5 24.0 346.7 49.6
Above RMB30 million but not ARB=ZTEITUANLERE

more than RMB50 million ARBERTETT 512.2 26.7 120.0 17.2
Above RMB50 million ANRERTETLAL 799.7 41.7 58.4 8.4
Total &5t 1,916.7 100.0 698.3 100.0
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the remaining maturity
profile of entrusted loan business of the digital finance segment as
at the dates indicated:

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated)

TREIINARAMBFLERD IR
REREBRRDBRERE D MHIBER:

As at 31 December

HZE12H318
2022 2021
20224 20214
Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BRBSEFBEIIN UAREBETTIIR) 28 1LHEE% B LAEEE%

Past due or due within six months B R Hi sk /<& A 385.0 20.1 351.2 50.3
LA EI 5

Due after six months but within one year 7~ A & — 4 FI| Hf 314.4 16.4 248.1 355

Due after one year but within two years —FEMF 1,119.0 58.4 8.6 1.2

Due after two years N LA _E FI| BB 98.3 5.1 90.4 13.0

Total &t 1,916.7 100.0 698.3 100.0

The following table sets forth a breakdown of collaterals obtained
by entrusted loan business of the digital finance segment as at the
dates indicated:

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated)

TRFIXNAREHPBEF LRI BER
RERXBERNEERD D MHITN

As at 31 December

HZE12H318
2022 2021
20224 20214
Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BB EFPEIN AAREBETETIIR) THE LAHEEY% TEE 1LAAEE%
Guaranteed loans REFEER 1,273.8 66.5 173.9 24.9
Secured loans EIFE R 642.9 33.5 524.4 75.1
— Buildings and land —EENLH 90.4 4.7 135.0 19.3
- Receivables and equity interests — PE AR TR K i e 541.5 28.2 367.5 52.7
— Others —Hfth 11.0 0.6 21.9 3.1
Total &% 1,916.7 100.0 698.3 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the key assets quality indicators of
entrusted loan business of the digital finance segment as at the
dates indicated:

BEREN WD

TRENEBEZMTBEHRBFEER DA
ZREFEBHNHEREEL SRR

As at 31 December

B Z12A31H
2022 2021 Change
2022 2021 )
Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(REEHBIN UARBEELIIT) 28 Al £E  BIK%
Balance of entrusted loans THETHE 1,916.7 698.3 1,218.4 174.5
Balance of provision for impairment losses & & il {8 % {5 #4 58 125.6 68.4 57.2 83.6
Provision rate BEx0 6.6% 9.8% (3.2 ppt =
BAE)
Provision coverage rate ? REBEEX0 147.2% 116.1% 31.1 ppt =
EBE i
Balance of overdue entrusted loans AREHERELHE 130.8 255.2 (124.4) (48.7)
Proportion of overdue entrusted loans®  #HAZ B R E KGO 6.8% 36.5% (29.7 ppt =
BAEH)
Balance of impaired entrusted loans BREZHERERSHE 85.3 58.9 26.4 44.8
Proportion of impaired entrusted loans ¥  EREZEE R EBHREGLY 4.5% 8.4% (3.9 ppt -
BAE)
Notes: S

)

@

Balance of provision for impairment losses divided by the balance of
entrusted loans.

Balance of provision for impairment losses divided by the balance
of impaired entrusted loans. Provision coverage ratio represents the
Group’s level of provision for potential losses on the entrusted loan
portfolio.

Balance of overdue entrusted loans divided by balance of entrusted
loans.

An overdue entrusted loan is an entrusted loan the whole or part of
whose principal or interest is overdue for 1 day or more.

This definition applies to all capital businesses of the Group, including
entrusted loans, receivables factoring, finance leasing and micro and
small loan business.
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(4) Balance of impaired entrusted loans divided by the balance of
entrusted loans.

For the capital businesses, the Group monitors risk exposure in loan
and advance groups according to the Guidelines for Risk Classification
of Loans issued by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission and applies the loan risk classification method. Loans and
advances fall into five categories by risk exposure, namely, Normal,
Special Attention, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss. The last three
categories are considered impaired. Where one or more events provide
objective evidence of impairment, the loan and advance in question
are considered impaired. The provision for impairment of loans and
advances is assessed in on a group or individual basis.

The Group regularly reviews the quality of individually significant
financial assets. With respect to assets for which provision is made
individually, the Group assesses the loss and determines the amount
of provision on the balance sheet date on an item-by-item basis. In
assessing loss, the Group usually considers the value of collaterals and
future cash flow.

This definition applies to all capital businesses of the Group, including
entrusted loans, receivables factoring, finance leasing and micro and
small loan business.

The Group uses the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model to calculate
the provision for impairment loss of entrusted loans in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). As at 31
December 2022, the provision for impairment loss of the Group’s
entrusted loans amounted to RMB125.6 million, representing an
increase of RMB57.2 million or 83.6% as compared with RMB68.4
million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the growth of
balance of entrusted loans business.

Digital finance segment - Receivables factoring

The Group adopted a prudent development strategy for its
receivables factoring business. As at 31 December 2022, the
balance of the receivables factoring business was RMB435.7
million, representing a decrease of RMB824.4 million or 65.4% as
compared with RMB1,260.1 million as at 31 December 2021. This
decrease was mainly due to the fact that the Group proactively
adjusted its business structure and reduced its investment in
receivables factoring business. Further, we disposed of some
overdue receivables for factoring business at a reasonable price
after careful assessments of their recoverability and estimated
recoverable amounts, resulting in a further decline in the size of our
receivables factoring business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Digital finance segment - Commercial banking

The Company and six other domestic institutions jointly established
Chongqging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. in 2016. The Company
contributed RMB900.0 million to the equity capital of Fumin Bank
in exchange for its 30.0% equity interest and became the largest
shareholder of Fumin Bank. As at 31 December 2022, Fumin Bank
had total assets of RMB54,874.3 million (31 December 2021:
RMB54,131.2 million) and total liabilities of RMB50,676.2 million (31
December 2021: RMB50,247.7 million), and its profitability remained
stable. In 2022, Fumin Bank achieved the total comprehensive
income of RMB314.5 million (2021: RMB358.5 million). Accordingly,
the Group recorded a gain of RMB94.4 million (2021: RMB107.6
million) in “share of profits of associates” in 2022 in respect of its
investment in Fumin Bank.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND FINANCIAL ASSET
MANAGEMENT SEGMENT

This segment provides capital investment services to selected
SMEs with growth potential and value by utilization of the
Company’s own funds and funds raised through cooperation with
external institutions, and includes partnership with banks and other
financial institutions to carry out non-performing asset management
business.

The capital investment and financial asset management segment
derives its revenue primarily from the appreciation of the investments
in equity and debt instruments, as well as from the acquisition and
disposal of non-performing assets. In 2022, the profit before tax of
the capital investment and financial asset management segment
was RMB35.8 million, representing a decrease of RMB106.1 million
or 74.8% as compared with RMB141.9 million in 2021, which was
mainly due to the change in fair value of trading financial assets.
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Capital investment and management business

In terms of fund raising, the Group worked together with external
organizations that aim to serve SMEs to raise capital by way
of funds, with a special focus on industry funds established by
government authorities at any levels and listed companies. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has successfully established 7 Funds
(81 December 2021: 8) with external investors, raising a total of
RMB644.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB684.1 million).

In terms of capital investment, the Group provides capital
investment services in small amounts to SMEs in its existing
customer base that are among the top in their own industries and
with stable management teams and sound growth potential. As
at 31 December 2022, RMB1,125.7 million was used for equity
investments (31 December 2021: RMB1,064.8 million) to obtain
long-term return on capital appreciation. On the other hand, in
order to effectively use idle capital to enhance capital returns,
RMB84.4 million was used for debt investments (31 December
2021: RMB140.9 million) to obtain stable returns.

Financial asset management

The Group’s financial asset management business was mainly
conducted by Liaoning Fu’an Financial Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Fu’an Asset is the first mixed-ownership financial asset management
institution in Liaoning Province. Since its establishment, Fu’an
Asset has gradually built a sound organizational structure and a
professional asset management team, with its operations growing
steadily. As at 31 December 2022, the net amount of the non-
performing assets acquired by the Group was RMB1,068.6 million
(81 December 2021: RMB524.9 million). The non-performing assets
acquired by Fu’an Asset are from financial institutions and non-
financial institutions, mainly comprising bank loans, entrusted loans
and accounts receivable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OTHERS SEGMENT

This segment represents the managerial functions of the
headquarters and other business lines and operational results
that cannot be completely categorized into any of the above
segments. With the objective of “integrating functions and
enhancing efficiency”, the Group has continuously strengthened
the integration of various functions, especially the mid-and-back
offices, to enhance operating efficiency and reduce operating
costs. Specifically, all business segments and their branches
focus on customer development and risk management, while the
headquarters focuses on the establishment of a unified service
system covering human resources, financial management, fund
raising and utilization, administrative services, and construction
of the information system, and provides targeted services to the
business segments and their branches.

Due to the impact of changes in the external market environment
and industry policies, as well as the Group’s business restructuring
and optimization of resource allocation in pursuit of a strategic
transformation towards digitalization in an all-round manner, the
Group’s micro and small loan business (i.e. the micro and small loan
business carried out by eight small loan companies of the Group
registered in Chongging, Chengdu, Tianjin, Shenyang, Nanning,
Guiyang, Nanjing and Shenzhen, respectively) has further shrunk.
As such, the micro and small loan business of the Group is included
and presented in the others segment.

The Group’s micro and small loan business is committed to
providing comprehensive financial services, mainly microfinance, to
micro- and small-sized enterprises, individual business proprietors
or individuals. As at 31 December 2022, the balance of the Group’s
micro and small loan business was RMB333.4 million, representing
a decrease of RMB346.5 million or 51.0% as compared with
RMB679.9 million as at 31 December 2021. In 2022, the average
interest and handling fee rate of the Group’s micro and small loan
business was approximately 12.5% (2021: approximately 14.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

The following table sets forth an analysis of outstanding balance
of micro and small loan business by risk exposure as at the dates

indicated:

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated)

TREINXARBHRERBA S D6

NEEESRED M

As at 31 December

HZE12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BRBEFBEIN UAREBETTIIR) 28 1HHEE% TEE (LABEE%
Not more than RMB100,000 ARB108 TR 10.6 3.2 36.0 5.3
Above RMB100,000 but not AREAOEB LA LR

more than RMB500,000 ANRHEEB0E T 60.5 18.1 254.6 37.4
Above RMB500,000 but not ARBEB0E LA LR

more than RMB1,000,000 ARBIEBETT 34.3 10.3 121.9 18.0
Above RMB1,000,000 but not ARE1BEBLUNLEE

more than RMB3,000,000 ARESEE L 43.9 13.2 87.7 12.9
Above RMB3,000,000 ARBIHEETTU L 184.1 55.2 179.7 26.4
Total a5t 333.4 100.0 679.9 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the remaining maturity
profile of micro and small loan business as at the dates indicated:

BEREN WD

TREINARA B NREEEBR G
2B E D MBI

As at 31 December

HZ=12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBRETBEIN AAREBFETIIR) T HEEY% T 1LABEE%
Past due or due within 3 months 22| sk =18 A A I HA 217.5 65.2 260.7 38.3
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =& A Z=7<18 A E & 81.4 24.4 114.0 16.8
Due after 6 months but within 1 year NME A E—FEIH 13.6 4.1 212.7 31.3
Due after one year —F 1% E|H 20.9 6.3 925 13.6
Total &5t 333.4 100.0 679.9 100.0

The following table sets forth a breakdown of collaterals obtained

TREIRNARA B NREEXEBEER

by micro and small loan business as at the dates indicated: HEERM D HIEN:
As at 31 December
BZ12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBEEAN UAREBETIIR) 8 1hAEE% THE  ILAEEE%
Credit loans ERER 13.4 4.0 12.6 1.8
Guaranteed loans REEK 210.8 63.2 200.4 29.5
- Guaranteed by intra-group guarantors —AHEBEAARMBEH 145.4 43.6 155.6 22.9
BERAER
— Guaranteed by independent third parties —HBIZFE=H 65.4 19.6 44.8 6.6
BRAER
Secured loans BEMERK 109.2 32.8 466.9 68.7
— Properties -BE 109.2 32.8 466.9 68.7
Total a5 333.4 100.0 679.9 100.0

Annual Report 2022

RO CERER

27



28

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

The following table sets forth the key assets quality indicators of the
Group’s micro and small loan business as at the dates indicated:

TRENBEEZMTBERAEENHEER

EBHHEREEE RS

As at 31 December

#HZ12A31H
2022 2021 Change
20224 20214 =)
Percentage

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %

(BREEFBEIN UARBEBHETLIIR) TEF TEE LB HAOH%

Balance of micro and small loans /MK & Zk 8458 333.4 679.9 (346.5) (51.0)

Balance of provision for BEREEHGRE 68.7 84.4 (15.7) (18.6)

impairment losses

Provision rate BiEx0 20.6% 12.4% 8.2 ppt -

Rk
Provision coverage rate @ BiEEEXRO 241.1% 251.2% (10.1 ppt -
ERE:0)

Balance of overdue mirco and BE R E REB T 187.9 276.5 (88.6) (32.0)

small loans

Proportion of overdue mirco and  #HA/ NI E R EK(E L 56.4% 40.7% 15.7 ppt -

small loans @ =Rk il

Balance of impaired mirco and B R{E/NMIERES#HE 28.5 33.6 (5.1) (15.2)

small loans

Proportion of impaired mirco and B R E /N E REK 58 8.5% 4.9% 3.6 ppt -

small loans @ fHEE® ERL

Notes: g

(1)  Balance of provision for impairment losses divided by the balance of (1) BERBEEBBRTERA/NIERER SRR -
micro and small loans.

(2)  Provision for impairment losses divided by the balance of impaired (2 BEREEHRIUERENIERERH
micro and small loans. Provision coverage rate represents the Group’s H-BBBEEXRTAEER/ MIERE
level of provision for potential loss of the micro and small loan business HHE A Pl AL IR IR R M B K -
portfolio.

(3) Balance of overdue micro and small loans divided by the balance of (3 BH/NSEREBHRBERIVINRERES
micro and small loans. For the definition of “overdue micro and small HE-B@E AN NNIERERI TS
loans”, please refer to page 21 of this report. B2HAREE1E -

(4) Balance of impaired micro and small loans divided by the balance of 4 EBRENIEREBSGERNNEERE

micro and small loans. For the definition of “impaired micro and small
loans”, please refer to page 22 of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group uses the ECL model to calculate the provision for
impairment loss of micro and small loans in accordance with
HKFRS 9. As at 31 December 2022, the provision for impairment
loss of the Group’s micro and small loans amounted to RMB68.7
million, representing a decrease of RMB15.7 million or 18.6% as
compared with RMB84.4 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly
due to the decrease of balance of micro and small loans business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Net guarantee and consulting fee income

In 2022, the Group recorded net guarantee and consulting fee
income of RMB337.3 million, representing a decrease of RMB139.7
million or 29.3% as compared with RMB477.0 million in 2021.

The Group’s guarantee and consulting fee income was derived
from its financing guarantee business (mainly including traditional
financing guarantee and bond guarantee) and non-financing
guarantee business (mainly including project performance guarantee
and electronic bid guarantee). In view of the macroeconomic
situation, the SMEs were reluctant to expand their businesses
through financing, which resulted in declines in the scale and
revenue of the Group’s financing guarantee business. The Group’s
guarantee and consulting fee income from financing guarantee
business decreased by 52.0% from RMB318.4 million in 2021 to
RMB152.7 million in 2022. On the other hand, the Group’s non-
financing guarantee business maintained growth in terms of scale
and revenue despite the delay or even suspension of construction
works due to the COVID-19 measures. The Group’s guarantee
and consulting fee income from non-financing business increased
by RMB55.3 million or 22.0% from RMB250.9 million in 2021 to
RMB306.2 million in 2022.

In view of the promising prospect of the electronic bid guarantee
market, the Group continued to strengthen cooperation with various
business channels to further consolidate its leading position in the
electronic bid guarantee market, which resulted in a continued
increase in the Group’s guarantee handling expenses. As such, the
Group’s guarantee handling expenses increased by 31.9% from
RMB92.2 million in 2021 to RMB121.6 million in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

Net interest and handling fee income

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s
net interest and handling fee income by products for the

years indicated:

MNERFEBEFRRA

TREJAEBHEMTFERERDE
MM ERFEEFRARM:

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2022 2021 Change
20225 20214 &
Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(BEEFHIN UARKBEELIIR) ZH 28 T 7t %
Interest and handling fee income from  REUTREHFIER
FEBWA
Loans and advances to customers BEHERRBK 150.4 191.6 41.2) (21.5)
Factoring business SEES 63.3 130.9 (67.6) (51.6)
Cash at banks RITHFH 4.8 7.2 (2.4) (33.3)
Time and restricted bank deposits T HFHME R ER 45.0 64.8 (19.8) (30.6)
REL

Finance lease business BEMEEH 0.5 2.4 (1.9) (79.2)
Credit consulting services commission ERARBASEA 93.4 138.4 (45.0) (32.5)

income
Other handling fee income HEMFEBRA 33.2 50.4 (17.2) (34.1)
Total interest and handling fee income  RERFEEWALLE 390.6 585.7 (195.1) (33.3)
Interest and commission expenses REUATEENRER

arising from FHEEXL
Interest-bearing borrowings SHEMER (151.3) (274.9) (123.6) (45.0)
Financial assets sold under EHEESREE (8.5) (8.0) 0.5 6.3

repurchase agreements
Commission expenses from micro MIERBEXH (9.3) (23.2) (13.9) (59.9)

and small loans
Other interest and commission expenses HipF B REE T (13.3) (48.5) (35.2) (72.6)
Total interest and handling fee expenses RN ERFEEZHMAE (182.4) (354.6) (172.2) (48.6)
Net interest and handling fee income MERFHEBFRA 208.2 231.1 (22.9) 9.9)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2022, the Group recorded net interest and handling fee income
of RMB208.2 million, representing a decrease of RMB22.9 million or
9.9% as compared with RMB231.1 million in 2021, the reasons of
which are set out below:

As the Group’s digital transformation was in full swing, we
proactively adjusted our business mix and reduced the scale
of our micro and small loan business and receivables factoring
business, resulting in a decline in the Group’s interest and handling
fee income. In 2022, the Group recorded interest and handling fee
income of RMB390.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB195.1
million or 33.3% as compared with RMB585.7 million in 2021.

In 2022, the Group recorded interest and commission expenses of
RMB182.4 million, representing a decrease of RMB172.2 million or
48.6% as compared with RMB354.6 million in 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in the interest-bearing debts of
the Group. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022,
the balance of interest-bearing debts of the Group amounted
to RMBS3,204.7 million and RMB2,550.4 million, respectively,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 20.4%.

Net trading (losses)/gains

Net trading (losses)/gains comprise changes in the fair value of
trading financial assets held by the Group and gains or losses
on disposal of financial assets. In 2022, the Group stepped
up its efforts in collection and disposal of assets. Upon careful
assessments of the recoverability and the estimated recoverable
amount of each asset, we disposed part of assets at a reasonable
price level, and recorded a loss on disposal of assets as a result.
In addition, we have provided for losses on changes in fair value
for some of our investments in trading financial assets with prudent
assessment of their values, taking into account market conditions
and actual situations of the assets. As a result, the Group recorded
a net trading loss of RMB17.9 million in 2022, compared to a net
trading gain of RMB88.5 million in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

Other operating income, net

The following table sets forth the breakdown of other net operating
income of the Group for the years indicated:

HiEEFERA

TREJAEEBRERMTFENEME
R

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2022 2021 Change
20224 20214 )
Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(BRRBFRIN UARBEELIIR) E ] i £ BT %
Commission income of insurance R4 AEB KA 22.9 27.8 (4.9) (17.6)
broker business
Commission expenses of insurance R NEB X (14.9) (25.9) (11.0) (42.5)
broker business
Net gains on disposal of long-term RERAREREF 14.1 17.0 2.9 (17.1)
equity investments Y i
Government grants BB 20.2 17.4 2.8 16.1
Dividend income R ON 12.6 11.6 1.0 8.6
Rental income HE WA 7.9 11.8 (3.9 (33.1)
Others H A 5.4 2.2 3.2 145.5
Total &5t 68.2 61.9 6.3 10.2

The Group’s other operating income, net mainly included net
commission income of insurance broker business, gains on disposal
of long-term equity investments, government grants, dividends and
rental income.

The commission income of insurance broker business mainly
represented the income derived from the insurance products
brokerage business of Zhongli Insurance Sales Co., Ltd.;

Government grants mainly represented policy subsidies granted by
the governments at different levels for the Group’s local financing
guarantee business.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Reversal for guarantee losses

The provisions for guarantee losses is an estimate of sufficient
provision for credit guarantee made by the Group based on the
asset quality of its guarantee portfolio and past experience. In the
process of digital transformation, the Group proactively adjusted the
structure of its credit guarantee business and vigorously developed
online standardized, automated, batch-based, and low-risk credit
guarantee products. In 2022, the Group reversed the provision for
guarantee losses of RMB192.0 million (2021: RMB36.5 million),
after a prudent assessment of the current risk profile of the Group’s
credit guarantee product portfolio, taking into account historical
records of default payments and recoveries with respect to the
Group’s credit guarantee business over the years.

Impairment losses

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
impairment losses for the years indicated:

BEREN WD
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For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2022 2021 Change
20224 20214 2%
Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(BRBRBEFHMN UAREEELIIR) 2E Ea ] ] BT %
Receivables for default payments JEU B R 98.3 51.4 46.9 91.2
Loans and advances to customers BHERRBR 137.6 6.4 131.2 2,050.0
Receivables for factoring business FE R IE K (5.0) 138.3 (143.3) (103.6)
Others Hb 6.2 (1.4) 7.6 542.9
Total = 237.1 194.7 42.4 21.8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

In 2022, the Group’s impairment losses amounted to RMB237.1
million, representing an increase of RMB42.4 million or 21.8% as
compared with RMB194.7 million in 2021, the reasons of which are
set out below:

In 2022, the Group’s provision for impairment losses on
receivables for default payments was RMB98.3 million,
representing an increase of RMB46.9 million or 91.2% as
compared with RMB51.4 million in 2021. We conducted
a comprehensive analysis of each of the receivables for
default payments by taking into account factors such as the
likelihood of future recovery, the expected timing of recovery
and the expected amount of recovery, and based on prudent
consideration, made sufficient provision for impairment of
receivables for default payments. The ageing analysis of the
Group’s receivables for default payments and details of the
movement in the provision for impairment are disclosed in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s loans and advances to customers include
entrusted loans and micro and small loans. In 2022, the
Group charged impairment losses of RMB137.6 million in
total for its loans and advances to customers, representing
an increase of RMB131.2 million as compared with RMB6.4
million in 2021, which was mainly due to the increase in the
balance of entrusted loans. Details of the movements in the
provision for impairment of the Group’s loans and advances
to customers are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group reversed impairment losses of RMB5.0 million
in respect of receivables for factoring business in 2022,
mainly due to the recovery of certain overdue receivables
for factoring business, as compared to impairment losses
of RMB138.3 million charged for receivables for factoring
business in 2021. Details of the movements in the provision
for impairment of the Group’s receivables for factoring
business are disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating expenses

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s
operating expenses for the years indicated:

BEREN WD

EEX

TR AEEBEMTFENEES
HeAAm

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2022 2021 Change
20224 20214 )
Percentage
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount %
(BREBFREN UARBEBEEILIIR) Ex ] i £ A7 %
Staff costs 8 T % B 291.1 369.9 (78.8) (21.3)
Tax and surcharges & X BT 14.7 15.3 (0.8) (3.9)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 47 & & # §4 59 2 85.8 99.9 (14.1) (14.1)
Others Hb 118.2 148.3 (30.1) (20.3)
Total &&t 509.8 633.4 (123.6) (19.5)

The Group’s operating expenses decreased by 19.5% from
RMB633.4 million in 2021 to RMB509.8 million in 2022. The
decrease was due to a decrease in labor costs as manual
operations were reduced by the digitalization of business amid the
Group’s comprehensive digital transformation; and a significant
decline in operating expenses resulting from the Group’s ongoing
efforts to implement cost optimization management measures,
reduce various non-essential expenses and refine costs
management.

Other net losses

Other net losses mainly represented losses on disposal of assets
arising from the sale of fixed assets or repossessed assets. The
Group disposed of idle properties and repossessed properties
to enhance its liquidity. In 2022, the Group’s other net losses
amounted to RMB39.7 million (2021: RMB13.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Share of profits of associates

The Group’s associates delivered steady performance. The Group’s
share of profits of associates amounted to RMB102.6 million in
2022, remaining stable as compared with RMB110.6 million in
2021, which was mainly attributable to the sound performance of
Fumin Bank invested by the Company, with the total comprehensive
income of RMB314.5 million (2021: RMB358.5 million).

Income tax

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022,
the Group’s income tax is RMB51.8 million and RMB57.5 million,
respectively.

Net profit

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded net profit
of RMB52.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of RMB60.3 million or 53.7%, compared to
the net profit of RMB112.3 million recorded for 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the Group had
no capital commitments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Intra-group liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Company provided guarantee for
an aggregate of RMB875.0 million of borrowings from specific
institutions to subsidiaries of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding guarantee balance of
the Group’s credit guarantee business was assumed by Hanhua
Guarantee, a subsidiary of the Group with financing guarantee
qualification, and its branches and subsidiaries.

As none of our credit guarantee subsidiaries has received any
capital contribution from any other legal entity of the Group and all
such subsidiaries are limited liability companies under the laws of
the PRC, the Company is liable for the debts of only one of such
subsidiaries (to the extent of the capital contribution of the Group).
Should any of our credit guarantee subsidiaries fail to pay any
contingent liability under an outstanding guarantee, the Group’s
liability under such outstanding guarantee will not have negative
impact on the business and performance of other entities of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding balance of guarantees
provided by our credit guarantee subsidiaries for certain small loans
granted by our micro-credit subsidiaries was RMB145.4 million (31
December 2021: RMB155.6 million). Such small loans have been
included in the “loans and advances to customers” in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, and the aforesaid amount was
not included in the balance of credit guarantee of the Group to
avoid duplicate computation and overestimation of the credit
risk exposure of the Group. Should any of such credit guarantee
subsidiaries be liquidated or become insolvent, these loans will
not be guaranteed and our relevant micro-credit subsidiaries
would be exposed to higher credit risk. As loans guaranteed by
credit guarantee subsidiaries are individually insignificant and
widely distributed, the Group believes any of these small loans
ceasing to be guaranteed by credit guarantee subsidiaries will not
have material impact on the business and performance of other
subsidiaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, our share capital was RMB4,600.0
million, comprising 3,430,000,000 domestic shares and
1,170,000,000 H shares, each with a face value of RMB1.00.

Liquidity and capital resources

We finance our working capital and other capital requirements
principally with capital contributions from shareholders, bank
borrowings, bond issues, cash inflows from operating activities
and proceeds from our initial public offering. Our liquidity and other
capital requirements are primarily related to entrusted loans, default
payments, restricted bank deposits, and other working capital
needs.

As at 31 December 2022, we had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB339.4 million (31 December 2021: RMB795.0 million), which
were mainly denominated in Renminbi. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2022, we had a total of RMB2,550.4 million
(31 December 2021: RMB3,204.7 million) interest-bearing debts
(including interest-bearing borrowings and financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements) outstanding, all of which were
denominated in Renminbi and carried interest at fixed rates. As at
31 December 2022, we had been paying the principal and interest
of our liabilities as scheduled. Details of the Group’s interest-bearing
debts are disclosed in note 24 and note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We are a party to contracts with off-balance sheet risks in the
ordinary course of our credit guarantee business. The contractual
amount reflects the extent of our involvement in credit guarantee
and our maximum exposure to credit loss. As at 31 December
2022, we had outstanding credit guarantee of RMB34,144.2 million
(81 December 2021: RMB32,452.1 million).

Save as disclosed above, we have no other off-balance sheet
arrangements.

DEBT-TO-EQUITY RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio
(calculated by the sum of interest-bearing borrowings and financial
assets sold under repurchase agreement, over total equity) was
32.0% (31 December 2021: 39.9%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is insignificant as
most of its transactions are settled in Renminbi.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investment during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 10 January 2022, the Company and Chengdu Metallic
Materials Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Metallic”) entered into an equity
transfer agreement in relation to the transfer of equity interest in
Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Micro-credit”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire an aggregate of
approximately 14.29% equity interest in Sichuan Micro-credit from
Chengdu Metallic at a total consideration of RMB116.0 million.
Upon completion of the equity transfer, the Company will hold
100.0% equity interest in Sichuan Micro-credit. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10 January 2022.

On 5 August 2022, the board of directors of the Company
announced that it had considered and passed the resolution
in relation to the acquisition of the equity interest in Chongging
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. (‘Chongqing Micro-credit”) from
Chongging Taoranju Food Culture (Group) Co., Ltd., Chongging
Huiyuan Investment Co., Ltd., Mr. Wu Fanfan and Ms. Li Qiujun
(collectively, the “Transferors”). Pursuant to the resolution, the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with each of
the Transferors to acquire an aggregate of approximately 14.0%
equity interest in Chongqging Micro-credit held by the Transferors
at a total consideration of approximately RMB90.8 million. Upon
completion of the equity transfer, the Company will hold 100.0%
equity interest in Chongging Micro-credit. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 5 August 2022.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s receivables for factoring
business with an aggregate carrying value of RMB345.9 million
(81 December 2021: RMB482.9 million), loans and advances to
customers with aggregate carrying value of RMB58.6 million (31
December 2021: Nil), buildings with an aggregate carrying value of
RMB707.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB796.3 million) and bank
deposits of RMB92.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB120.1 million)
were pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save for the off-balance sheet arrangements disclosed on page
39, the Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Upholding the principle of integrating information technology
with business strategies, the Company continued to formulate
the informatization plan of the Group, optimize its information
technology governance structure, and promote the construction
of information technology infrastructure and important information
systems based on the digital transformation strategy for Company’s
businesses, thereby ensuring the stable operation of its information
systems and providing strong support for strengthening the
management and business innovation of the Group.

Information Technology Governance

An information construction leading group has been set up at the
management level with the president as the core member to play
the role of major decision-making, important project establishment,
coordination and supervision, thus forming a regular decision-
making mechanism for information construction.

Information Planning

Focusing on its strategic goal of creating a Chinese sample of
inclusive finance and on the basis of the existing information
planning, the Company pushed forward the dynamic formulation
of an information plan, and made clear that the priority for 2022-
2023 is to promote the digital transformation and upgrading of the
Company’s businesses as well as the management and governance
of data assets, so as to support the implementation of the
Company’s strategies and enhance its management and operating
efficiency.
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BB AT

The Company effectively defined system boundaries and positioning
by creating an integrated operation and maintenance process and
improving relevant functions, and introduced new technologies to
gradually realize automatic replacement of the whole process of
core business system products, while leveraging modularization
and cloud services to meet the market demand for rapid iteration
of products, with a view to building an integrated business platform
based on financial technology (fintech).

On the basis of the existing data warehouse, data mart and in-
memory Bl analysis tools, the Company built capabilities in internal
and external data collection, unstructured data analysis and data
tag creation. The Company acquired a full range of data assets,
created complete connections among business objects, further
protected and improved the value of data assets, in an effort to
avoid the sinking of data assets.

Information System Construction

According to the Group’s management, business development and
innovation needs, the Company accelerated the construction of
various information systems.

In order to optimize human resources management and services,
the Company improved the recording of organizational and
personnel information in all aspects to form a complete set of
personal data on employees, while providing mobile self-service
functions to serve employees, setting annual performance targets
and conducting performance appraisal through performance
management functions, and improving employees’ self-learning
results through an online learning platform. The Company provided
an approval process platform and mobile modeling platform with
flexible configuration, and established and adjusted online approval
procedures processes that can change rapidly in tandem with
business development. A mature financial system is in place to
handle all revenues and expenses and accounting procedures of
the Company and provide employees with an online reimbursement
mechanism. A stable knowledge management platform has been
set up to manage and store various electronic files of the Company
in a centralized manner and enhance the security of digital assets
through encryption and watermarking functions. A number of
communication and collaboration mechanisms including an email
system, an instant messaging platform, a video conferencing
platform, and an online conferencing platform, are employed to
facilitate efficient collaboration among employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Guarantee Group adhered to the direction of digital transformation,
bridged industrial scenarios and focused on target customers,
thereby continuously improving its digital operation and service
capabilities. Starting from the bidding and procurement transaction
scenario, it built the bond guarantee business system and realized
the whole process digitalization of various businesses. Meanwhile,
it carried out the technology output of financial service platform
and SaaS-based bond platform leveraging on its own sophisticated
product system and systematic capability system. Based on the
supply chain finance scenario, a new generation of core business
system for credit was structured, linking the key points of supply
chain such as ERP of core enterprises, industrial internet platform
and intelligent warehousing, and boosting the scenario access
capabilities, business processing efficiency and data application
capabilities. It explored precise customer marketing and operation,
built customer interface, marketing analysis, CRM, operation
analysis and other systems, so as to optimize customer experience,
improve the digital capabilities in marketing and operation
management. Further, Guarantee Group continuously levelled up
the cognition of digital operation within the Group, expanded the
width and depth of data application, improved digital management
capabilities, enhanced digital support capabilities, continued to
iterate the construction of data platforms, and provided full life-
cycle support from data acquisition, cleaning, processing, digging,
modelling to application and governance. It continually optimized
the construction of digital teams, and comprehensively improved the
team’s product design, R&D and delivery, structural management,
project management and quality assurance capabilities through
recruitment of talents, change of organizational structure and
reform of performance management, providing guarantee for the
achievement of the Group’s digital transformation goal.
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Jinwei Technology continued to deepen the digital transformation
and reform, and explored the path of technological application
suitable for its own development. For the traditional finance
business, it continually improved the online business platform,
integrated resources and optimized structure, expanded data
application scenarios, and enhanced the stability of online
automatic risk control. It provided ongoing supports for business
cooperation scenarios, formed a systematic connection model,
reduced the connection costs of front- and back-end business
partners, and improved the access efficiency. High-availability
and high-performance support capabilities were achieved through
strengthening the fundamental operation and maintenance as well
as constructing a new system base. For the new industrial segment,
on top of the existing “Smart” series product capabilities, it focused
on building the brand new 2.0 products, improving functions,
enhancing product stability and scaling up the application. Focusing
on fast-moving consumer goods, serving specific customer
groups and bridging industries, the new products will help Jinwei
Technology to expand its business into new areas.

The Company advanced the construction of APl gateways based
on its enterprise data bus (EDB) to ensure the standardization and
security of internal system APIs and save costs. The Company
optimized and upgraded the existing communication and
collaboration platform to eliminate the incompatibility problems
at the user end, allowing employees to use it more smoothly and
improving their office efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Construction of Information Technology Infrastructure

Hanhua'’s private cloud was extended in depth. On the basis of the
previous compression and integration of physical servers of the
data center into a virtualization platform and with an aim to reduce
costs and improve backup efficiency, the Company completed the
design and implementation of a construction project of a disaster
recovery platform based on its IT construction needs, thus realizing
the shift from a decentralized manual backup model to a centralized
and automatic backup platform that supports remote disaster
recovery. Through the construction of a new unified monitoring
platform, the Company conducted sampling analysis on all kinds
of equipment and applications (e.g. hosts, network equipment,
databases, and applications) and monitoring and processing of the
massive data generated by the managed objects in a centralized
manner, enabling rapid locating, analysis and handling of faults
and risks. Based on the previous upgrade of the data center host
to virtualization architecture, the Company deployed an anti-virus
system in a virtualized environment by incorporating all server
security functions into an integrated flexible platform which is
integrated with the virtualization platform, so as to protect the
virtual machine from viruses, spyware, Trojans and other malicious
software attacks. The Company has completed the deployment of a
vulnerability scanning platform which can scan vulnerabilities in the
entire network and collect and analyze relevant information, so that
the operation and maintenance personnel can keep track of the
overall network security and timely secure equipment or systems
with potential security risks.

The Company strengthened the standardization of edge network
system in branches. Through a unified management platform, the
Company performs equipment and network security monitoring,
centralized management and strategic management on all firewalls
of branches nationwide to realize rapid distribution of strategies
and unified early warning, and regularly submits and analyzes HSM
management reports, so as to prevent network security incidents,
protect its data assets and ensure the security of employees’
working environment. The security control of the intranet has been
strengthened and a Group-wide network access system has been
implemented. Accordingly, non-intranet users’ private connections
to the intranet can be detected, pinpointed and effectively blocked.
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Information Technology Management Capabilities

The Company stepped up efforts to promote the digital
transformation and upgrading of financial services. By fostering the
core competitiveness of financial technology and collaboratively
building a technology base, the Company realized internal
empowerment and external technology output. Through the internal
market-based mechanism for IT function, the Company formulated
effective cooperation rules and supervision mechanisms to better
cope with the digital transformation collaboration and cost issues,
ensuring the orderly advancement of Hanhua Financial’s overall
digital strategy.

In an effort to strengthen user account management, enhance the
compliance of production-related operations, prevent unauthorized
operations, and improve the security of the production environment,
the Company conducted an overhaul of account security in
the production environment, strictly separated read and write
permissions based on the operation requirements, cleaned up some
non-compliant accounts, and traced and rectified illegal operations
in the production environment through bastion host and video
surveillance, thereby ensuring the safe and stable operation of the
information system and preventing and reducing system or data
access risks caused by illegal or improper operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

“Talents” represent one of the most valuable assets of Hanhua
Financial and are carefully nurtured. The Company has always
been committed to building a high-standard professional team with
“kindness, diligence, integrity, self-discipline and responsibility”. As
at 31 December 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
was 914, all of whom served in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Company attaches great importance to organizational culture
building and employee care, promotes cultural cohesion through
employee care, and incorporates corporate values and social
responsibility into organizational culture. In 2022, the Company
implements and highlights employee care activities in several
aspects: through the establishment of a digital communication
platform, blessings, interactions and special activities will be pushed
during the festivals such as Chinese New Year and Mid-Autumn
Festival, which makes employees can get the corporate care by
their mobile phones and also enhance the stickiness between
employees and employees, and between employees and the
Company; the quarterly human resources internal magazine will
be issued to convey the Company’s strategy and summarize the
industry trends; the “Hanwha Fan” with the themes of employee
care and workplace norms will be continuously promoted through
the Enterprise WeChat. The multi-pronged approach puts
the corporate culture on the ground and effectively enhances
employees’ sense of belonging, responsibility and team pride.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

In terms of the construction of the honor system, the Company
continues to carry out the five-year and tenth-anniversary
recognition of employee service, and issue honorary certificates,
thank-you letters and customized exclusive souvenirs to award-
winning employees every year, in recognition of employees’
dedication and inheritance of corporate culture. In addition, the
Company also recognizes outstanding employees, outstanding
teams, and outstanding work cases of the year through the annual
evaluation work, establishes a model of behavior, and stimulates a
sense of honor and enthusiasm for work.

In terms of organization management, on the basis of the
successful completion of the restructuring of the Company
and business units and the upgrade of the job grade system,
we comprehensively promoted the restructuring of the digital
combat organization system, build an agile organization structure,
enhance the vitality, cohesion, creativity and combat power of the
organization, integrate resources, coordinate operations, improve
the market expansion capability and comprehensive service
capability of the war zone team, and enhance the core value of
the Company’s business network. At the same time, it accelerates
digital process reengineering and further reconstructs and innovates
in organization, talent and mechanism in order to establish a new
organizational system that matches the Company'’s strategy.

In terms of employee development, the Company has realized
the continuous and stable operation of the digital management
function, and the Company’s training data has also been effectively
controlled. The combination of online and offline, all-round
penetration, encouraging employees to use fragmented time for
continuous learning, and making every effort to build a learning
organization: online courses “Time Light Listening”, quarterly
learning competitions, live broadcast of business knowledge
themes, and the Company’s book corner “Hanlin Book Sea”. The
digital learning platform breaks through the limitations of time and
space and efficiently meets customized learning and development
needs. As of 31 December 2022, the total learning hours of the
Company’s employees were 7,312 hours, and the per capita
learning hours were 8 hours.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of compensation and incentive system, we combine the
needs of organization and business transformation, establish an
open and shared, pay-for-performance distribution mechanism,
fully mobilize employees’ subjective initiative, and actively explore
the three-tier partnership model of the Company, business group
and each business division. We will build a more incentive-based
market-oriented salary system, establish a shared performance
management mechanism, and rebuild the Company’s performance
appraisal system with efficiency indicators as the center. To fully
stimulate the enthusiasm of the staff, to achieve the common
construction of the platform, career creation and value sharing. The
welfare system is centered on caring for employees’ health, creating
a triangle protection system of social insurance, health checkups
and commercial insurance to give employees comprehensive and
practical protection.

In terms of human resources digital construction, the platform
interconnection is continuously optimized, and the robot-assisted
salary calculation and tax declaration effectively improve efficiency
and accuracy; the introduction of electronic signature realizes the
digitalization of recruitment confirmation and contract signing; the
Company’s self-researched platform recruitment system has been
successfully put into use, which realizes the dynamic update of the
recruitment process, and HR, interviewers and candidates can view
and self-help operation in real time. Digital HR makes the work more
efficient and the experience of the participants is greatly enhanced.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the board of directors
(the “Board”) are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Jun (Chairman)
(Appointed on 16 October 2022)

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang

Mr. Cui Weilan

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang
Ms. Liu Tingrong
Ms. Wang Fangfei
Mr. Feng Yongxiang
Mr. Liu Bolin

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cao Ziwei (Appointed on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Li Wei (Appointed on 16 October 2022)

Mr. Hu Yuntong (Appointed on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Xu Hongcai (Appointed on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Bai Qinxian (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Qian Shizheng (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Ng Leung Sing (Retired on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (Retired on 16 October 2022)
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jun, aged 54, he joined the Group in March 2015 and
successively served as the general manager of Liaoning Small Loan
Company* (EZ/NFEHEFKAR]) (in preparation) and the deputy
general manager of Liaoning Hanhua Capital Management Co.,
Ltd* (BE=HHFEE AEE G A a]) . Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhang Jun served as the secretary of the Youth League Committee
of Liaoning Financial Workers University* (GREZEE SR T AZ)
(subsequently merged with Liaoning Finance Vocational College*
(FES BB EER)to form Liaoning Bank School* (& % iR
1TE#Z)) from March 1991 to July 1993, served as the deputy
general manager and economist of the corporate department of
the Chaoyang branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
from July 1993 to November 2004, and served as the president
and executive director of Chaoyang Jinda Titanium Industry Co.,
Ltd.* (¥ & E IR E R D AR A7) from November 2004 to March
2015.

Mr. Zhang Jun has won the “Meritorious Award”, the “Model Worker
Medal”, the “Builder’s Medal” and the “May 1st Laborers Medal”
of the Chaoyang Municipal Committee and Municipal Government
of Liaoning Province. Mr. Zhang Jun obtained a master’'s degree in
business administration from China Europe International Business
School in August 2014.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EEREAEEE

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 58, he co-founded the Group in
August 2004, served as the president of the Group from August
2004 to March 2016, the Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company since March 2013, and served as the chairman of
Chongging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd* (EEERBTRMHER A A])
since August 2016. In addition to his positions in the Group, Mr.
Zhang has served as a member of the third and fourth session,
and a member of the Standing Committee of the fifth session,
of the Chongqging Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference* (FEIARBUA R EHERE
MZ 82 ) since December 2017. He has been a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chongaging Federation of Industry and
Commerce* (EE ™ L8 ) , the vice chairman of the Chongaing
General Chamber of Commerce* (EE M E ) since 2017. He
is currently also the vice chairman of the Chongging Federation of
Industry and Commerce* (EE ™ L) . In December 2021,
Mr. Zhang became the vice chairman of the Entrepreneurs Club of
China Enterprise Association* (1 & (R E K ALHEL) . Mr. Zhang
obtained an executive master of business administration degree
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in September
2011. He was employed as an adjunct professor and postgraduate
tutor at the School of Economics and Management of Southwest
University (7A@ A28 ) in October 2020. Mr. Zhang directly holds
approximately 66.89% of the equity interest of Chongging Huitai
Investment Co., Ltd.* (EEZHRKEBRAF) (“Huitai”), which
directly holds 450,416,901 domestic shares of the Company
(‘Domestic Shares”). Accordingly, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be
interested in the 450,416,901 Domestic Shares held by Huitai. Mr.
Zhang also directly holds 2,768,861 Domestic Shares, and holds
585,971 H Shares through the Scheme.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 51, joined the Group in June 2006 and
successively served in several positions including the chief legal
officer, vice president, secretary to the Board and executive
president. Mr. Cui has been an executive Director since May 2015
and the president of the Company since March 2016. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Cui was a practicing lawyer of Hebei Jimin Law
Firm* G4t B R 2B E A7) from 1999 to 2006, and worked at
Hebei Political and Legal Management Cadre College* (Jal4t BUA
E IR #EET ) (now known as Hebei Political and Legal Vocational
College* R dEBUEB 2 207 ) ) from July 1995 to March 2007. Mr.
Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from the department of
politics of Southwest Normal University* ( 783 B #3 A &) (currently
known as Southwest University) in June 1995. He is also accredited
as a practicing solicitor by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC and
as an associate professor in law by Hebei Title Reform Leadership
Committee Bureau* (i b B FE 2 £ 2B & /)N 4H ) . He completed the
postgraduate program in economic law from Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences in September 2003 and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from China Europe International
Business School in September 2012. Mr. Cui directly holds
2,068,742 Domestic Shares, and holds 648,005 H Shares through
the Scheme.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, aged 44, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in August
2009 and was a director of Hanhua Financing and Guarantee Co.,
Ltd.* (B =B & R B R A A)) from August 2009 to April
2015. She has been the director of Chongging Fumin Bank Co.,
Lid* (EEERRITERMH AR A AE]) since August 2016.

Before joining the Group, Ms. Liu served as the general manager of
Chongging Maohua Technology Co., Ltd.* (EEXEREER AT )
from October 2003 to August 2009. Ms. Liu obtained her bachelor’s
degree in economics from Saint Petersburg State Polytechnical
University in Russia in December 2003, and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Tsinghua University in
June 2017. She is currently pursuing a doctorate in business
administration at Western College of Business of Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Liu directly holds 441,159
Domestic Shares.
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ES EEREAEEE

Ms. Liu Tingrong, aged 48, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in March
2011 and served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee from March
2011 to April 2015.

Ms. Wang Fangfei, aged 36, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in November
2010 and held various positions, including the project manager, and
chief reviewing manager of the business management section and
general management section of Hanhua Guarantee until October
2013, and served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee from March
2011 to April 2015. Ms. Wang has been the general manager of
Chongging Boding Aluminum Co., Ltd.* (EEESIRZEER A a))
since May 2017, the assistant to the executive director of Shunbo
Alloy Anhui Co., Ltd.* (EIE& £ Z#EBR A 7)) since August 2022,
and the supervisor of Chongging Jinshanjia Trading Co., Ltd.* (EE
BEE=Z FAER AT since September 2022. Ms. Wang obtained
her master’'s degree from Sheffield Hallam University in October
2009, majoring in international business and management. She
obtained her junior college degree in business administration from
Chongging University in July 2006. Ms. Wang directly holds 55% of
the equity interest of Chongaing Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd.* (E&
B hBE®REAR QA (“Chongqing Jiulong”), which directly holds
231,532,653 Domestic Shares. Accordingly, Ms. Wang Fangfei is
deemed to be interested in the 231,532,653 Domestic Shares held
by Chongging Jiulong.

Mr. Feng Yongxiang, aged 52, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in August
2009 and was a non-executive director of Hanhua Guarantee from
August 2009 to April 2015.

Mr. Feng worked for Chongging Yayu Business and Commerce
Development Co. Ltd.* (EE I HEERABR A F]) as a deputy
general manager from May 2005 to January 2010. He worked as
the senior relationship manager of the Chongqging branch of China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600016) and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01988), from July 2003
to May 2005. He served as the senior relationship manager of the
Chongging branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600000), from March 2000 to July 2003.
He worked for Yangjiaping Sub-branch of China Construction Bank
Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601939) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0939), from July 1991 to February 2000.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Liu Bolin, aged 37, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since June 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu
has been the executive director and general manager of Sichuan
Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd.* (FAJI1 5L EEE AR A7), one of the
minority shareholders of the Company since March 2013. Mr. Liu
obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration from
Shenzhen University in June 2006 and obtained his master’s degree
in accounting from the State University of New York at Binghamton
in December 2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cao Ziwei, aged 53, Doctor of Sociology, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October
2022. Mr. Cao worked at the National Bureau of Statistics in 1992,
at the China Banking Regulatory Commission* ( /1 B $8 17 % B5 &
EIZELZEE)in 2004, and at the Qianjiang District Government of
Chongging (as an assistant to the district head) in 2010. In 2012,
he worked as a member of the party group, secretary of the party
committee and deputy director (deputy department level) of the
Chongaing Financial Office* (EE M £ i) . Since 2017, he has
served as the strategic vice president of Tianxing Digital Technology
Co., Ltd* (RESHEIBHZAER A A]) (previously known as Xiaomi
Digital* (/\>K %)), director/president of Jiefu Ruitong Co., Ltd.*
(ENEEIRMAEMR AR, director of Park Dao Credit Information
Co., Ltd.* (EBME=AB MR A A)), and secretary of the party
committee of Xiaomi Consumer Finance Company* (/|\>K5E & 4 &b
A F]) . He has also been the chairman of Chongging port industrial
and Financial Big Data Development Co., Ltd. (EE O = E g A2
BEFERABMRAF) since 2020.

Mr. Cao graduated from Nankai University in July 1992 with
a bachelor’s degree in sociology, and obtained a doctorate in
sociology from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in June
2002. Mr. Cao served as a visiting scholar at Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore under the Lien Ying Chow Legacy Fellowship
programme from 2016 to 2017.
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ES EEREAEEE

Mr. Li Wei, aged 52, master’s degree in economics, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October
2022. Mr. Li served as the manager of China Chengxin Securities
Appraisal Co., Ltd.* (R R EEHFTHBER AR ) from 1995 to
1997, the manager of Guotai Securities Co., Ltd.* (EIFZ&ESAE
fRA &) from 1997 to 2000, and the deputy general manager of
Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd.* (EEEF# RH AR A7) from 2000 to
2006. He was the general manager of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities
Co., Ltd.* (RIRBBESFKH BR AR ) from 2006 to 2008, and
the managing director of China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd.* (#
RN A& MDA BR A A) since 2008. He has been an independent
director of Shanghai Remodeling Energy Group Corporation* (_£/&
BRRREERMN AR AF) since 2020.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Renmin
University of China in 1992 and a master’s degree in economics
from Renmin University of China in 1995.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Hu Yuntong, aged 40, doctor of law, post-doctorate in law of
Southwest University of Political Science and Law, post-doctoral
researcher of business administration (auditing) of Southwest
University of Finance and Economics, professor of Southwest
University of Political Science and Law, part-time lawyer, certified
public accountant and fund practitioner, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since October 2022. Mr. Hu
was rated as a leading accounting talent in Chongqging (Chongging
Finance Bureau® (EEE MBI /) and the Organization Department
of the Chongqing Municipal Committee of the Communist
Party of China* (R EXEEMZ A EF)). He has served as a
member of the Financial and Taxation Committee of Chongging
Lawyer Association* (EEMEAMBEMHEEELZEST), the
Chongqing’s municipal budget performance evaluation expert, the
Chongging’s municipal government procurement evaluation expert,
an enforcement expert of Chongging Ecological Environment
Bureau* (EE M A REIRIEF ), a special expert of Chongaging
International Taxation Research Association* ( & B 1 B ER £ Ug 71
%€ ), a director of Chongging Taxation Society* ( & & 1 i 75 &
&), a director of Chongging Audit Society* (EEMET2g ),
and executive director of Chongqging Law Society Financial and
Taxation Law Research Association* (& B /A2 & B i A 258
&), an executive director of Chongaging Law Society Environmental
Resources Law Research Association* (EE M A2 SREER
SEEHIEE ), and a director of China Law Society Financial and
Taxation Law Research Association* ( FElEZ @ M ASM e
Since 2020, he has been an independent director of Chongging
Changjiang Plastic Materials (Group) Co., Ltd.* ( & & & L& & %
(£E)ERMARLDA), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 001296), and an independent director of
Chongaing Kangtian Property (Group) Co., Lid.* (EEFEHEE (&
E) AR A a]. Since 2021, he has been an independent director
of Jinke Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. * (£ R EEBERMDBERE A
A)), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000656). Since 2022, he has been an independent director
of Chongging Zhixiang Jintai Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EE
BEAeRTEMRERMNABRAF), and an independent director of
Chongging Sifang New Materials Co., Ltd.* (& &5 ## & A5
FR27F]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 605122).
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Mr. Hu began to teach in the audit department of Southwest
University of Political Science and Law in 2011, and he also began
to practice law at Chongging Kunyuan Hengtai Law Firm* ( 2 5 ##
JREZEERIESFT) in 2011, Mr. Hu received a bachelor’s degree in
accounting and a master’s degree in law from Southwest University
of Political Science and Law in 2005 and 2008 respectively, a
doctorate in law from Chongqging University in June 2011, and
a post-doctorate in law from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law in January 2015. In November 2017, he became
a postdoctoral researcher in Business Administration (auditing) of
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Xu Hongcai, aged 58, doctor of economics, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October
2022. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Xu worked at the headquarters of
the People’s Bank of China; from 1998 to 2001, he served as the
general manager of the Shanghai headquarters of GF Securities;
from 2001 to 2003, he was the vice president of Beijing Technology
Venture Capital Company* (dt REHE R E A F]) . From 2003
to 2010, Mr. Xu successively served as a professor and director of
the Securities and Futures Research Center at the School of Finance
of Capital University of Economics and Business. From 2010 to
2019, he successively served as the director of the information
department, director of the economic research department, and
deputy chief economist of the China Center for International
Economic Exchanges. He also served as an independent director
of China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd., from February 2015 to January
2022; and has been an independent director of China Everbright
Group and has served as an independent director of China Life
Asset Management Company Limited since December 2020. Mr.
Xu is the executive director of the China Society for Policy Science,
the deputy director of the Economic Policy Committee, the director
of the Economic Research Center of the European and American
Students Association of China, the executive vice president of the
Study in America Branch, the chief economist of Caijing Toutiao*
(Bf4€881&) , and the chief economist of China (Sanya) International
Consumer Research Institute* (R Bl (= 58) BB B B 7P ) ,
special economic commentator of CCTV, adjunct professor of
University of Chinese Academy of Sciences, Beijing Normal
University* (1t BT &5 KX &), Central University of Finance and
Economics* (FF R B4 K E) | invited senior researcher of China
and Globalization Think Tank* (1 B8 2 FR{L 2 ) , and expert of
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce think tank* ( £ & T
PR E) .

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE

R ER0ITFHABEARBARNESE
R R0 ERBEEE HRS
7= 2B B T5 PN 2 o B8 58 £ 20054 &
FAEBEASGHEHEDLTEMN R
2008 F EA MBI AASB AL HEFL 2
;2011 F6 A EBSEREREZEH L+
R2015F1 AR AR BEKXEE ST
T 2017TFIMAKATAEPE&RET
BMEE(BFTE2)ELEMRAE-

BT KE 58m KEZIE L 52022
FIOARRAARRRIBIYIIERNTES B
S B1996F E19098FE NP E AR
RITARIT1998F E2001F X B # F H
MR AE AR IR 20015 E2003F T 1k
RREIBEEREE AR LE  2003F &
20100 T EEREE S RESHERHK
B BHFHEMHEALEML 20102
2019F B AEFBERBL&EI A LE
MEadE KERRISAR BELSE
B R2015%2 8 £2022F1 AL # B X
RNIRITRHERRAABILES  20224F
1RESHERBEAREEBILES 2020
F1I2RESATREASEEERLAE
VEE-BREERAPBEBEREZHE
EEBES LEBRXZEEEAE +
ERERZEZeKBEMEPOLIE BE
PEeEFIeR MEEKERLES
X HFE(ZH)EBREBEENERERL
BER PREREFOLETRE  F
BIRIET RE L R A& K2 PR
REFBHE PHEZETERE
SRMMEE 2R IEBEERER-



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu received a master’s degree in philosophy from Renmin
University of China in 1993 and a doctor of philosophy in
economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in
1996. He successively went to the University of British Columbia
in Canada and the Dominican University in the United States as a
visiting scholar.

Mr. Bai Qinxian, aged 82, was an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from March 2013 to October 2022. He
retired from his position as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due to the expiry
of his term.

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, aged 76, was an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from March 2013 to October 2022. He
retired from his position as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due to the expiry
of his term.

Mr. Qian Shizheng, aged 70, was an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from June 2013 to October 2022. He
retired from his position as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due to the expiry
of his term.

Mr. Ng Leung Sing, aged 73, was an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from June 2013 to October 2022. He
retired from his position as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due to the expiry
of his term.

Mr. Yuan Xiaobin, aged 53, was an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since June 2013 to October 2022. He
retired from his position as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due to the expiry
of his term.
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SUPERVISORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the board of
supervisors (the “Supervisor(s)’) (the “Board of Supervisors”) are
as follows:

Mr. He Zhonghua (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
(Appointed on 16 October 2022)

Mr. He Yu (Appointed on 16 October 2022)

Mr. Chen Zhonghua (Employee Representative Supervisor)

Mr. Li Ruping (Retired on 16 October 2022)

Ms. Qin Yong (Retired on 16 October 2022)

Mr. He Zhonghua, aged 58, has been the chairman of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company since October 2022. He joined
the Group in August 2018 and serves as the executive director
and president of Beijing Hanhua Industry-Financial Interconnection
Industrial Co., Ltd* (It BEEREBEEBRAF), and the
executive director and president of Beijing Dingchuang Economic
and Trade Development Co., Ltd.* (It RBEIKEEHRBR QA .
Before joining the Group, Mr. He worked in the Shenyang Office of
China Great Wall Asset Management Company* (R Bl R EEE
EAHBR A A) from 2000 to 2005, and served as a director, party
secretary and vice president of Liaoning Fangda Group Industrial
Co., Ltd* (EEFAEBEZEABR A F) from February 2005 to
March 2018. Mr. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Liaoning University in January 1996 and obtained a master’s
degree in economics from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics* ( AL B AL K2 ) in November 1999.
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Mr. He Yu, aged 42, a supervisor of the Company since October
2022, has served as the president of the Company’s cloud
telecommunications business unit since September 2022. Mr. He
joined the Group in August 2009 and successively served as the
assistant to the general manager of Sichuan Hanhua Financial
Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (FUJIBERMEERER AR]), the deputy
general manager of the operation management department of
Hanhua Guarantee (presiding), the general manager of Hanhua
Guarantee Tianjin Branch* (B ZEREEREMDABER A RKED
‘Ad]), and the general manager of Chongging Branch of Hanhua
Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.*. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He
worked at CITIC Guoan Gold Co., Ltd* (FEEIZE2 EREER
7)) from September 2002 to July 2005, and worked as the financial
manager of Beijing Maipu Century Technology Co., Ltd. Sichuan
Branch* (It R BEH LR FEARET R ATEIIISHRAF) from July
2005 to July 2009. Mr. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Beijing Technology and Business University in
July 2002. Mr. He directly holds 294,106 Domestic Shares.

Mr. Chen Zhonghua, aged 48, a supervisor of the Company since
March 2013. He joined the Group in January 2005 and held various
positions, including the deputy general manager of the strategy
development department, general manager of the information and
technology department and marketing officer of Hanhua Credit. In
addition, he was a supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee from August
2009 to April 2015, and the standing deputy general manager
of Sichuan Micro-credit and deputy general manager of Sichuan
Hanhua from January 2013 to January 2015. He was elected as the
fourth employee representative supervisor on 16 October 2022 staff
meeting.

Mr. Chen obtained his junior college degree in finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics ( 78 & 81 48 K
2)in June 1995. He graduated from Chongging Technology and
Business University (EE T A2 ) in June 2005, majoring in
accounting. Mr. Chen directly holds 441,159 Domestic Shares.
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Mr. Li Ruping, aged 66, was the chairman of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company from March 2013 to October 2022. He
retired from his position as a chairman of the Board of Supervisors
of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due to the expiry
of his term.

Ms. Qin Yong, aged 52, was a supervisor of the Company from
March 2016 to October 2022. She retired from her position as a
supervisor of the Company with effect from 16 October 2022 due
to the expiry of her term.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, the members of senior management
are as follows:

Mr. Zhang Jun

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang

Mr. Cui Weilan

Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan

Mr. Yuan Guoli

Mr. Ren Weidong

Ms. Pengying (Appointed on 16 October 2022)
Mr. Luo Xiaobo (Resigned on 16 October 2022)

Details about Mr. Zhang Jun, Mr. Zhang Guoxiang and Mr. Cui
Weilan biographies are set out on pages 51 to 53 of this report.

Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan, aged 48, has been the executive president
of the Company since March 2018, and he has been appointed
as the co-chief executive of the Company with effect from January
2022, responsible for the development of digital financial services,
and for managing the Guarantee Group. He has been the chairman
of the board of directors and the president of Hanhua Guarantee
and also the director of Liaoning Fuan Financial Asset Management
Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in March 2008 and successively
served as the chief financial officer and vice president of the Group.
In addition to his position in the Group, he also served as the
chairman of Chongging Financing Guarantee Industry Association

(EEMREEREHE) .
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Mr. Zhou obtained his junior college degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in June 1995.
He obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Peking University in July 2018.

Mr. Yuan Guoli, aged 53, has been the vice president of the
Company since 2016. He is currently the chairman of Liaoning
Fuan Financial Asset Management Co., Ltd. He joined the Group
in October 2006 and successively served as the deputy general
manager, general manager and group marketing director of Liaoning
Hanhua and the president of Fuan Financial Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial economics
from the department of industrial management of Liaoning University
in July 1991, and an executive master’'s degree in business
administration degree from Liaoning University in June 2015. He
is currently undertaking an executive master’s degree in business
administration degree at Guanghua School of Management of
Peking University.

Mr. Ren Weidong, aged 45, has been the vice president of
the Company since March 2018. He was the secretary of the
Board from September 2015 to October 2022, and he has also
been serving as the sole company secretary and authorized
representative of the Company since September 2018. He is in
charge for managing the Company’s financial audit department,
investor relations, administrative office department, etc.. He joined
the Group in February 2009 and successively served as the the
general manager of the financial department of the Group and the
chief financial officer, etc.. He has been the vice president of Hanhua
Guarantee since September 2022. In addition to his positions in
the Group, he is also the director of Chongging Technical Elements
Exchange Center Company Limited (EERFEEEZR HH LHR
‘A|]), the director of Shandong Financial Asset Exchange Co.,
Ltd. (UREBMEERHFLAEMR DT, the director of Chongging
port industrial and Financial Big Data Development Co., Ltd. (&
EORERMABEEXZREABMR AR, the vice president of
Chongging International Tax Research Association ( 2 B2 1 B R #i
Ug#i7E€ ) , and the president of Chongging Liangjiang New Area
Tax Society (EEM /L@ Ee
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Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’s degree in auditing from Hangzhou
Institute of Electronics and Engineering (#1/1 & F L % 263 )
(currently known as Hangzhou Dianzi University (11 & 7 &
KE)) in July 1999. He obtained an EMBA degree in Guanghua
School of Management of Peking University in July 2018.

Ms. Pengying, aged 49, has been the board secretary of the
Company. She joined the Group in February 2008 and worked in the
strategic development department of the Company from February
2008 to February 2011, where she was primarily responsible for,
among others, providing strategic analysis and suggestions to the
senior management of the Company. She has been working in the
investor relations department of the Company from March 2011
to September 2022 to the general manager from March 2011 to
February 2015 and the deputy general manager from February
2015 to October 2016.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Peng worked for Kingdee Software
(Chongging) Company* (£ %84 (&£ )2 7)) as a marketing
manager from 1997 to 2004, and worked for Chongging Dehong
Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited* ( & £ {2
ROEEEEBEMAMR A A)as a deputy general manager of the
consulting department from 2007 to 2008.

Ms. Peng obtained a bachelor's degree in law from Southwest
University of Political Science and Law (AR BUAAZ ) in 1996
and a master’s degree in business administration from Southwest
Jiaotong University ( 78/ 2 3 A2 ) in 2007.

Mr. Luo Xiaobo, aged 43, was the vice president of the Company
from March 2013 to October 2022. He resigned from his position
as a vice president of the Company on 16 October 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied
with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), and performed its rights and obligations in
accordance with responsibilities granted by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”). The Company’s internal control system is
sound and effective, and the information disclosure is true, accurate
and complete. There is no violation occurred during the Reporting
Period.

The Board has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has complied with the Code Provisions.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and will continue to strengthen its own
corporate governance standards to ensure compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and meet the expectations of
shareholders and potential investors.

SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Company held two general
meetings, namely the 2022 annual general meeting dated 26 May
2022 and the first extraordinary general meeting in 2022 dated 16
October 2022. The procedures of giving meeting notices, calling for
the meetings, convening the meetings and voting at the meetings
were in compliance with the provisions of the Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Articles of Association. For
details of contents and resolutions considered at the above general
meetings, please refer to the relevant announcements published by
the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company dated 26 May 2022 and 16 October 2022.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, according to Article
64(3) of the Articles of Association, when an extraordinary general
meeting is requested in writing by a shareholder individually or
shareholders collectively holding at least 10% (inclusive of 10%)
of the outstanding shares with voting rights of the Company, the
Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting within two
months. According to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, when
the Company is to hold an annual general meeting, shareholder(s)
holding at least 3% (inclusive of 3%) of the shares of the Company
with voting rights shall have the right to put forward temporary
proposals in writing to the Company, and the Company shall list
the issues in the temporary proposal that fall within the scope of
responsibility of the general meeting in the meeting agenda.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board or any proposal for an Extraordinary General
Meeting may email their enquiries to pengying@hanhua.com or
mail their enquiries in writing to the Company’s headquarter at 6-9,
Building 2, 11 East Honghu Road, Yubei District, Chongqging, PRC.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions, business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the fourth session of
the Board has established four Board committees, including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination and
remuneration committee (the “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee”), the strategic investment committee (the “Strategic
Investment Committee”) and the risk management committee
(the “Risk Management Committee”) (collectively referred to as
the “Fourth Session of the Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and they
have carried out duties in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of three executive
Directors, five non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors.

Details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Strategic Investment Committee.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the
members of the Board.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2022 is as follows:

Name of Directors

ABEEHEEXRZRE

FraEENEE2022F12A31H ILFE
BEREINERNT

Contents of Training

EEnA BEZEIRNR
Executive Directors: PITESE:

Mr. Zhang Jun (Chairman) REEE(EER) A-B
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang o B4 5 A A-B
Mr. Cui Weilan ERETE A-B
Non-executive Directors: FHHITEE:

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2 H L+ A B
Ms. Liu Tingrong BlE e+ B
Ms. Wang Fangfei FERFELZT B
Mr. Feng Yongxiang TSRS B
Mr. Liu Bolin ZEREE B
Independent non-executive Directors: BV HHITEE:

Mr. Cao Ziwei BErEEA A-B
Mr. Li Wei FEEE A-B
Mr. Hu Yuntong fRfzm Ak E A-B
Mr. Xu Hongcai T s A B
Notes: Wiz

A:  Attending training, seminars, forums and conferences on topics such
as economics, finance and corporate management;

B: Reading materials related to requirements on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and internal control and risk management, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Mr. Zhang Guoxiang has been the chairman of the fourth
session of the Board and Mr. Cui Weilan has been the president
of the Company. Mr. Zhang and Mr. Cui lead by example, perform
their duties, commit to maintain the high standards of corporate
governance for the Company.
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Appointment, Change and Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be elected at the general meetings for a term of no more than three
years, and may be re-elected and re-appointed upon the expiry of
such term. The Company has implemented an effective mechanism
regarding the appointment of new Director. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will first discuss the matters in relation to
the appointment of new Director, and then present to the Board as
proposals, which will be subject to approval at the general meeting.

Director Nomination Policy

This Director Nomination Policy (the “Policy”) aims to: set out
the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
directors of the Company; ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company; and ensure Board continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and/or the Board: character and integrity;
qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
strategy, and the potential contribution to the Board from the
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy; any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board; willingness
and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and Board committee(s) of the Company.
Meanwhile, in order to comply with the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board may
also conduct a wide search for candidates who are in the interests
of the Company.
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Nomination Process of the Appointment of A New Director

1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of a new director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

2. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board
shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable).

3.  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship (where applicable).

4. For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election
as a director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above and, where appropriate, make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of director at
the general meeting.

The Company has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with each of the Directors (including non-executive
Directors) and the Supervisors. The service contracts and the letters
of appointment are for a term of three years.

Regular Board Meetings

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board should
hold no less than four regular meetings annually, to be convened
by the chairman of the Board. Notices of not less than 14 days will
be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with
the opportunities to attend and include matters in the agenda for a
regular meeting.
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For other committee meetings, the meeting notices, the agenda
and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members within a reasonable timeframe to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings.

Board meetings shall be held only if more than half of the Directors
are present, except for when the Board is considering the matters
relating to connected transaction as provided for under the Articles
of Association.

Minutes of the Board meetings and the committee meetings will
record in sufficient details the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and
committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable timeframe after the date on which the meeting
is held.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 11 Board meetings were
held to review various matters within the scope of duties of the
Board, such as annual results, interim results, financial reports, and
the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set
out in the table below:

Name of Directors

SRERRE

REMEZBEEEHEM

CARRAIGAE
iﬁffﬁmﬁlﬁﬁ%iié/\ﬁﬁi/ﬁéﬂj‘\
AN ZRELBEEST S FAER
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FLHERLS BEREERITRA
FEEBEHAFEERES UHEKEE
& o

HZE2022F12A31R I EEHE &=
@%%ﬁﬂ}k%%‘\é\%%%%¢§¥
BEAHERE WERESESETRES
ANEE BIEEHEZSSENE
MERTE:

i

Attendance/
Number of

Board Meetings
Held in 2022 during
the Director’s tenure

HiE 202256 8%

EHRNEHESSE
EENSE RPN
Mr. Zhang Jun (appointed on 16 October 2022) RELLE (FR2022F10816B £ ) 1/1
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang RS A 11/11
Mr. Cui Weilan EBRRERLE 11/11
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2 Hm AL 11/11
Ms. Liu Tingrong RE R+ 11/11
Ms. Wang Fangfei TFELL 11/11
Mr. Feng Yongxiang IKFE S 10/11
Mr. Liu Bolin RFREE 11/11
Mr. Cao Ziwei (appointed on 16 October 2022) IR (R2022F10F16B £ 1) 1/1
Mr. Li Wei (appointed on 16 October 2022) B E (FR2022F10816B £ ) 1/1
Mr. Hu Yuntong (appointed on 16 October 2022)  #AFziB 54 (2022410 A16H &£ 1) 1/1
Mr. Xu Hongcai (appointed on 16 October 2022) &3t A 54 (20224105168 Z1E) 1/1
Mr. Bai Qinxian (retired on 16 October 2022) B e 4 (F7R2022F10 A16HE(E) 10/10
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (retired on 16 October 2022) BB RN SE 4 (72022510 16 H R (E) 10/10
Mr. Qian Shizheng (retired on 16 October 2022) BB A (2022510 516H R E) 10/10
Mr. Ng Leung Sing (retired on 16 October 2022) SR E R4 (FR2022F10816HET) 10/10
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (retired on 16 October 2022) RN (R2022F10 816 H R ) 10/10
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, two general meetings
of the Company were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at the meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

HE2022F12A31H IEFEHM > A A
RAIERIT2ABBEAS -HARESHER
RASMBERIN TR :

Attendance/
Number of

General Meetings
Held in 2022 during
the Director’s tenure

HE 20224

EETHREH

BEEng BRERKERE
Mr. Zhang Jun (appointed on 16 October 2022) RELAE (R2022F10A16B &£ 1) 1/1
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang RS A 2/2
Mr. Cui Weilan ERRLE 2/2
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2B m Lt 2/2
Ms. Liu Tingrong RE e+ 2/2
Ms. Wang Fangfei FEFEXLT 2/2
Mr. Feng Yongxiang KRS 2/2
Mr. Liu Bolin BEREE 2/2
Mr. Cao Ziwei (appointed on 16 October 2022) I (R2022F10 8168 &£ 1) 1/1
Mr. Li Wei (appointed on 16 October 2022) B E (2022108168 £ 1) 1/1
Mr. Hu Yuntong (appointed on 16 October 2022)  #AFzi8 L4 (FR2022410816H &) 1/1
Mr. Xu Hongcai (appointed on 16 October 2022) Btk S (FA2022F10 A 168 £ 1) 1/1
Mr. Bai Qinxian (retired on 16 October 2022) B 875 58 A (742022910 16 H R E) 2/2
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (retired on 16 October 2022) BRRB RS SE A4 (72022510 16 H B ) 2/2
Mr. Qian Shizheng (retired on 16 October 2022) BB A (R2022910 A16H R T) 2/2
Mr. NG Leung Sing (retired on 16 October 2022) REE oA (20225410 A16HEE) 2/2
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (retired on 16 October 2022) RN (A2022F10 16 B R ) 2/2

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
practice for carrying out securities transactions by the Directors and
Supervisors. Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors and
Supervisors, they have confirmed their compliance with the relevant
standards stipulated in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Duties performed by the Board and management

The Board shall report to the general meeting and exercise the
following powers, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and
are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management of the Company. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by
the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to the
entering of any significant transactions by the management of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

The details of the senior management are disclosed in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this

report.

Remuneration paid to the senior management (including three
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Remuneration Range (RMB)

EEREREEENHMH

RRARERHEARAEEESEEaRE R
EHIMAMBERE Y EXN R EBRHENE
Froe#l E2022F12A31HIEFE &=
ENFTNF BRI BHRERMFT

BREEENFAENBRERARSE (&
= EENSREEE] -

HZE2022F12A31BLEFE O F 5
BEEE (BEZRES)WHFIOT :

Number of People

FHER (AR AH
Up to 1,000,000 1,000,0007T J2 AT 2
1,000,000 to 1,999,999 1,000,0007T £1,999,9997T 3
2,000,000 or above 2,000,0007T }JA 2

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Hu Yuntong (independent
non-executive Director), Ms. Li Wei (independent non-executive
Director) and Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (non-executive Director). Mr. Hu
Yuntong is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main responsibility of the Audit Committee is to facilitate the
communication, supervision and verification in respect of the
Company’s internal and external auditing. Its main functions and
powers are, including but not limited to, proposing the appointment
or replacement of the external auditors; overseeing the Company’s
internal audit system and its implementation, and reviewing the
Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices; auditing the
financial information of the Company and its disclosure; reviewing
the Company'’s internal monitoring and risk management systems;
examining the Letter of Audit Description provided by the external
auditors to the management, any material queries raised by the
auditors to the management in respect of formulating whistle-
blowing policies and systems, etc.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, four meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to review various matters within the scope
of duties, such as annual results, interim results and elect the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at meetings of
the Audit Committee is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/
Audit Committee
meetings held in

2022 during the

Name Director’s tenure
HiE 202256 8%

EHRBEES

" & ZEEERNE
Mr. Hu Yuntong (appointed on 16 October 2022 tAFR R (FA2022E10 A16 B &£ 1) 2/2
Ms. Li Wei (appointed on 16 October 2022) B (R2022F10A16B £E) 2/2
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2L+ 4/4
Mr. Qian Shizheng (retired on 16 October 2022) BB A (2022510 A16H R E) 2/2
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (retired on 16 October 2022) RN E (72022810 16 B3R T) 2/2
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, namely
Mr. Cao Ziwei (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang (executive Director) and Mr. Xu Hongcai (independent
non-executive Director). Mr. Cao Ziwei is currently the chairman of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board to formulate the recruitment
procedures and assessment standards for Directors and senior
management of the Company and conduct preliminary assessment
on the qualifications and conditions of candidates to be appointed
within its area of competence; study and formulate the remuneration
plans, performance appraisal systems and incentive schemes of
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company,
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors, supervisors and senior management
of the Company and supervise the implementation of plans and
systems.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, three meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held to review
various matters within the scope of duties, such as the nomination
and appointment of co-presidents, removal of senior management
of the Company and nomination of candidates for independent
non-executive directors of the fourth session of the Board and
remuneration of directors of the fourth session of the Board.
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The attendance of the members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee at the meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table below:

SRERRE

REEFHZEEREHFEEZNENR
N TR:

Attendance/
Number of
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee
meetings held in
2022 during the

Name Director’s tenure

HiE 202256 8%

FHRABHEIREEE
H®E FHEEEERAHE
Mr. Cao Ziwei (appointed on 16 October 2022) IR (2022108 16B £ 1) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SR B S 3/3
Mr. Xu Hongcai (appointed on 16 October 2022) B A e (R2022F10A16B £ 11) 0/0
Mr. Bai Qinxian (retired on 16 October 2022) B e 4 (72022F10 A 16 H R (E) 3/3
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (retired on 16 October 2022) BB RN SL 4 (72022410 A16H R () 3/3
Board Diversity Policy EEgREZTLBE

The Company believes that the diversification of the Board
is beneficial for enhancing the performance of the Company.
Therefore, the Company has established the “Policy on
Diversification of Members of the Board” to ensure that when
determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider the diversification of members of the Board from various
aspects, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All appointments to the Board shall follow the principle
of meritocracy, taking into account objectively the benefits of
diversification of members of the Board when considering the
candidates. The candidates of the Board are selected based on
a range of diversified perspectives, including but not limited to
age, gender, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

As at the date of this report, the Board has three female Directors,
representing 25% of the Board. The Board targets to maintain at
least the current level of female representation. When appointing
new Directors, the Board will fully consider the gender ratio of
existing Directors and strive to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will disclose the
composition of the Board annually in the “Corporate Governance
Report” and monitor the implementation of the policy. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review the policy
when appropriate to ensure the effectiveness of the policy. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will discuss any possible
amendments and make recommendations to the Board for
approval.

Strategic Investment Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Strategic Investment
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei
(independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(executive Director) and Mr. Cui Weilan (executive Director).
Mr. Li Wei is currently the chairman of the Strategic Investment
Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategic Investment Committee
are to examine and advise the Board on our long-term development
strategies and major investment decisions.

The written terms of reference of the Strategic Investment
Committee are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, a meeting of the Strategic
Investment Committee was held to review various matters within the
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scope of duties, such as the appointment of the chairman of the ZEZERHEHERNEHE-
Strategic Investment Committee.
The attendance of members of the Strategic Investment Committee BRI ETEeKELReZNBELE
at the meetings of the Strategic Investment Committee is set out in NTER:
the table below:
Attendance/
Number of Strategic
Investment
Committee
meetings held in
2022 during the
Name Director’s tenure
HIE, 20226 EE
EHANBRERKIRE
A ZESERLY
Mr. Li Wei (appointed on 16 October 2022) BB (202210 16B &£ 1) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang RS A 1/1
Mr. Cui Weilan EHRETE 1/1
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (retired on 16 October 2022) BRB R SE 4 (FA20225 10 A16H R E) 1/1
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Risk Management Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Risk Management
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Cui Weilan
(executive Director), Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (executive Director) and
Ms. Liu Tingrong (non-executive Director). Mr. Cui is currently the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

According to the “Rules of Procedures of the Risk Management
Committee of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.”, the primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to
provide professional advice to the Board or making decisions on
professional matters pursuant to the authority granted by the Board
in relation to the risk management.

The written terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings of the Risk
Management Committee were held to review various matters
within the scope of duties, such as reviewing of internal control
evaluation report and election of chairman of the Risk Management
Committee.

The attendance of members of the Risk Management Committee at
the meetings of the Risk Management Committee is set out in the
table below:
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Attendance/Number of

Risk Management
Committee meetings held in
2022 during the

Name Director’s tenure

HE 20226 EEEHAEH
i EREEZEEERAE
Mr. Cui Weilan ERRERTE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang oR B RS A 2/2
Ms. Liu Tingrong RlE e+ 2/2
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DIVIDEND POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The dividend policy was adopted pursuant to the resolution passed
by the Board on 12 December 2018.

Principle of profit distribution

The Company shall attach importance to reasonable returns to
investors and adopt a consistent and stable profit distribution policy.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account the Group’s
earnings performance, financial position, investment requirements
and future prospects.

On the premise of meeting the day-to-day capital requirements,
predictable important investment plan or significant cash
expenditures, the Board can, in accordance with the operating profit
and cash flow of the current period, advise whether to distribute
dividend and the specific scheme shall be submitted to the general
meeting of the Company for approval after being reviewed by the
Board.

The Company adopts a combination of cash, shares or cash and
shares for profit distribution and gives priority to profit distribution
in cash. The Company will handle relevant matters on withholding
and payment of tax when distributing dividends in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations for the time being in force and relevant
requirements on taxation in the PRC.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 143 to 146 of this report.

CHANGES OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, Mr. Luo Xiaobo ceased to be a vice-
president of the Company on 16 October 2022. On 16 October
2022, the Company appointed Mr. Cui Weilan as president of the
Company, Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan as co-president of the Company,
Mr. Yuan Guoli as vice president of the Company, Mr. Ren Weidong
as vice president of and finance manager of the Company, and
Ms. Peng Ying as Secretary of the Board.

The term of the above senior management is the same as the term
of the directors of the fourth session of the Board.

As at the date of this report, details of the Senior Management
are set out under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibilities in relation to monitoring
the risk management and internal control system of the Company.
It also performs supervision and inspection on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system through the Risk
Management Committee and the Audit Committee on an annual
basis. Risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has set up the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for providing professional advice on risk management
to the Board and making decisions on professional matters in
relation to risk management under the authorization of the Board.
The Risk Management Committee categorizes and streamlines the
strategic risks, financial risks, operational risks and legal risks which
potentially arise from operation of the Company, and assigns the
duties of monitoring, initial assessment, formulating risk response
strategy, implementation of strategy and alert of risk to different
functions and departments. These functions and departments will
then carry out initial risk information collection and risk assessment,
while the internal control and audit department and the senior
management of the Company will supervise and improve the risk
management, and report to the Risk Management Committee as
necessary.

Based on the business nature of the Company, the Company
established the risk management special committee at its subsidiary
level, which focused on the management of business risks such
as operational risks under the supervision of the Risk Management
Committee of the Board. The risk management special committee
has three tiers and six regional risk review centres, which
substantially optimize and reform the control procedures of credit
risks, operational risks and legal compliance risks according to
the principles of separation of front, middle and back offices
and effective supervision and control. The risk management
special committee also formulates regulatory documents such as
the standard operating procedure and measures for managing
operational risks, with a view to establishing an internal control and
risk management system covering our whole business process. The
business department collects raw information on risk and conducts
risk assessment; the risk management department formulates
business risk strategy and raise business risk resolutions; and the
internal control and audit department and the senior management
of the Company are responsible for relevant supervision and
improvement work, and, where necessary, report to the Risk
Management Committee.
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The Group carries out communication in a timely manner regarding
the identified major internal control flaws and prudently assesses
potential risks. The responsible department shall propose relevant
corrective actions and obtain approval from the senior management
prior to the implementation. The senior management and the
internal control and audit department monitor the implementation
status and ensure timely and proper remediation of relevant
monitoring flaws.

The Group has formulated the policies and procedures for handling
and disclosing inside information, which are set out in the section
headed “Management of Inside Information and Insiders” of the
Administrative Rules for Information Disclosure of Hanhua Financial
Holding Co., Ltd. ( CHESIZERHERRAFMEERETEINE) ).
The information and date to be disclosed shall be properly reviewed
and approved by the Board to ensure its timeliness, accuracy,
sufficiency and effectiveness, and shall be closely monitored after
disclosure.

The Board has set up the Audit Committee, which is responsible
for reviewing the Company’s internal control, ensuring that the
management has fulfilled its duties to establish an effective
internal control system, and proactively or, as delegated by the
Board, conducting analysis of key investigation findings and the
management’s response in relation to relevant internal control
issues.

The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee,
in collaboration with the Company’s internal control and audit
department, have carried out a comprehensive assessment and
review on the system building and implementation particulars of
the Company’s internal control and the effectiveness of its risk
management system for 2022. The Board considers that those
systems are effective and adequate. Such review shall be performed
at least once per year and shall cover relevant year(s).
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s auditors, KPMG and other accounting
firms, for audit and audit related services amounted to a total of
RMB8.08 million, totaling RMB8.08 million.

An analysis on the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG, and
the remuneration paid or payable to other accounting firms for the
provision of annual auditing services to the Company’s subsidiaries
is as follows:

Services by the Auditors

=B ET N &
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HAMESBSTMESMAEME A
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TEMNBARREFEERENEM
SEMEBAMESN O TEIIAT

Amount (RMB)

REEHREIER SHE(ARE)
Auditing service: ZERTE

Annual auditing services FEZHARE 8,080,000.00
Total =t 8,080,000.00

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company are responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policies and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. Mr. Ren Weidong has been appointed as
our sole company secretary in September 2018.

Mr. Ren has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE

REAME

KRB AGIWEAERCEEARASE
MESgRIER ITRREBESS
MBEEREF BREE FHAURER-
R2018FOH ARREFEAKRLELER
KAFIME—RRIFE -

HE2022F12A31B I FE M T %
EERFAE LTHRBNEI2EET IR
15/ R AR BT -



Corporate Governance Report

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
STAKEHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders and stakeholders are essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The general meeting of shareholders of the
Company provides an opportunity for shareholders to communicate
directly with Directors and senior management of the Company.
The chairman of the Board, chairman of the Board Committees
and certain members of the senior management of the Company
will attend the general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.
The Company has also issued notices, announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports to keep shareholders informed of the
latest development of the Company.

The Company has formulated the Shareholder Communication
Policy to maintain close contact with the investors. During the
reporting period, the Company strengthened the communication
between investors and potential investors by holding Shareholders’
meetings, accepting investors’ visits and research, telephone
conference exchanges by one-to-one or one-to-many, accepting
inquiries or email replies to improve investors’ understanding and
recognition of the Company and improve corporate governance to
maximize the Company’s overall interests and protect the legitimate
rights and interests of investors. During the Reporting Period, the
Company effectively implemented the Shareholder Communication
Policy.

The Company publishes the Company’s address, investor relations
phone number and email address in detail on the Company website
and regular reports, and also arranges a special person to answer
investors’ calls, respond to investor emails, and report to Company
leaders in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained continuous close relationship with
stakeholders, including customers, employees, suppliers, regulatory
authorities and the public. The Company is devoted to balance the
opinions and interests of the stakeholders through constructive
communication, so as to set the long-term development direction
for the Company and the regions where its business operates.
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Taking Haier Electronics, the major strategic cooperation customer
of the Company’s supply chain financial business, as an example.
Established in 1984, Haier Group is one of the world’s largest
manufacturers of household electronic appliances and has a large
number of distributors in the PRC. Since 2012, Haier Finance Co.,
Ltd. has established business relationship with Hanhua Guarantee,
a subsidiary of the Company, for the provision of supply chain
financial services to distributors of the distribution channels of Haier
Group, and has maintained such business cooperation for over
10 years. Despite the close relationship with Haier Group, Shell Oil
and other major customers, the Company holds a firm position on
adopting the same credit requirements as other customers and
makes provision according to industry regulations. The Company
is aware that the risks in cooperating with major customers mainly
arise from their operating risks, hence it does not fully rely on the
credit of the major customers, rather, it applies strict screening on
SME borrowers through credit rating system so as to diversify the
operating risks of its major clients.

On 16 October 2022, the first extraordinary general meeting of the
Company in 2022 considered and approved the proposal in relation
to the amendment of the Articles of Association. The latest version
of the Company’s Articles of Association has been published on our
Company’s website (www.hanhua.com) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange website, respectively.
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REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

This is an annual report prepared by the Company, together with its
subsidiaries to fulfil the requirements of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. This report covers the financial year from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”), and aims to
provide investors with an overview of the environmental, social and
governance work of the Group (covering Chongging headquarters
region, excluding other branches in Mainland China and institutions
in Hong Kong region).

REPORTING PRINCIPLE

The Group has complied with materiality, quantification, balance
and consistency reporting principles in disclosing its Environmental,
Social and Governance performance for the Reporting Period.

Materiality — The Group pledges to carry out materiality assessments
to identify material environmental and social issues that have
major impacts on investors and other stakeholders when it has the
capacity to do so.

Quantitative — Key performance indicators (‘KPIs”) have been
established, and are measurable and applicable to make valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions; information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions, and/or calculation tools
used, and sources of conversion factors used, have been disclosed
when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding choices,
omissions or presentation formats that may unduly influence
readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and presentation
of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time.
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The Company strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
including the Company Law of the PRC and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. It is committed to maintaining high-level
corporate governance. It makes decisions and plans through
professional committees under the Board and relevant professional
committees and special work teams under the management
of the Company. It has also established rules and systems
regarding human resources management, financial resources
management, technological resource management, information
resource management, corporate culture building and risk control
and management, so as to form a common code of conduct for
employees, provide guidelines for daily work, and ensure that the
Company’s operation meets the requirements of safety, efficiency,
green and harmony in terms of systems, resources and personnel.
Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the 2022
Annual Report for details of corporate governance of the Company.

VISION AND STRATEGY OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

As an enterprise dedicated to offering comprehensive financial
services, our vision in environmental, social and governance is to be
a model for the inclusive financial industry in China.

In terms of social responsibility, we are committed to providing
inclusive finance and serving SMEs and individuals, and constantly
expanding the scale and scope of our services. In terms of
environmental practice, we strive to implement office “digitalization”,
advocate environmental protection and reduce environmental
costs. In terms of corporate governance, we actively improve our
corporate rules and systems and strengthen risk management and
compliance management. We integrate corporate environmental
and social responsibility considerations into business decisions.
In realizing our vision and making business decisions, we adhere
to the principles of credibility and sustainability, and balance the
benefits of all parties involved.
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RS HERERHS

The Company will continue to improve its strategies in respect REREAQNBEBRTEERBENRIE 1

of environmental, social and governance in the future. We have EREATEHMNER BRMEXENR
established regular communication mechanism with our major HEEELT THBEBESG  REER

stakeholders to timely understand their expectations and allow MR ERE - WEMm MR R MR RE
them to provide feedback to us so as to improve the Group’s DN ESEBETERRE LR EFTAMN
management of environmental, social and governance. BT o

Major stakeholder
FEREEBA

Communication channel

BERE

Regulators

EERE

Investors

REE

Employees
8T

Respond to the nation’s call and implement regulatory policy
ZREBARTA BEEEIR

Enhance operational and management performance
RAKEEBER

Support the development of real economy
XREBKEER

Implement the requirements of regulators
REEERBENX

Regular report

E BRRE 3 T 1%

Annual/interim results presentations on a regular basis

THERNFE HHERRME

General meeting to update investors on our operation

BRKRRKRG  BHREEH R FELSHNER

Website maintenance to ensure investors’ timely access
to the latest information of the Company

HEADFAY REREE RKERARRKHELS

Routine research, interaction and visit

HEARRBFW EEED

Induction training to encourage exchange between
new recruits and department heads
FRETIAREI EDHMETERZMLFIBEARR
Conclusion meeting and annual spring meeting on a regular basis
THERTIERESZNIEFS
Attend meetings, seminars and training sessions organized by external parties
SEMGRBRENNGE  EHK B
Performance management evaluation
BB AT
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Major stakeholder Communication channel

FERZEBRS BRERR

Customers Website, official WeChat account and other online channels
Ly Wb - MEARFREEHERE

Customer visit and site visit

ESEP ETHEAEER

Seminar, conference and appreciation meeting
e Mg SHe

Community Promoting financial literacy
v FREMHE
Active donation
TE1R 2 B AR
Assistance to the disadvantaged groups
P NCIEEEpicd: ]
Participation in voluntary service
A & T R R 755
Industry peers Attending trade associations and industry forums
EES: 20 MATTE B S 2MITHERE

Visiting and inspecting industry peers

FRERAFD ER

Partners Centralized procurement in an open, transparent and fair manner
BIERH AR CER - AEMERRE
Procurement management system combining online and offline channels

R RTHEENRBEERSR

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ARERIER
Performance indicator Amount Unit
BRES S BE BN
Economic responsibility Total assets 11,483 RMB’ million
KEBEERME BEER ARBERET
Net profit 52 RMB’ million
D ARBEET
Owner’s Equity 7,969 RMB’ million
FrEE#ER AREBET
Effective tax 116 RMB’ million
BB ARBAETT
Environmental responsibility Vehicle emission 28.24 kg
RREML AERHERE T
Total greenhouse gas emission 562,323.12 kg
mERBHNASE Fx
Power consumption 703,756.43 KWh
REE FREE
Water consumption 4,856.3 m?
FEKE SJTK
Paper consumption 1.7 tons
P s 48
Social responsibility Total number of employees 914 people
nHeiE BERAH A
Percentage of female employees 50 %
wtEE L %
Percentage of employees with 82 %
a bachelor’s degree or above
BRI EEEGE %
Training hours of employees 7,312 hours
& B il & /N
Satisfaction of training 100 %

BEEIHEE

%
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For various issues of environmental, social and governance,
the Company ranked the issues of importance to the business
and the importance to investors, and identified the following 15
materials issues in this assessment, which have been stated
in this report: vehicle emission, total greenhouse gas emission,
power consumption, water consumption, paper consumption,
employment, health and safety, development and training, labor
practices, supply chain management, product responsibility, anti-
corruption, community, internal control, risk management.

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In compliance with the provisions under the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, the Securities and Futures and
Companies Legislation (Uncertificated Securities Market
Amendment) Ordinance 2015 and other applicable laws and
regulations, the Company actively adopts measures to improve
environmental management and encourages staff to reduce
pollution and waste during work to minimize the environmental
impact of the Company’s business as well as its products
and services, with a view to protecting and improving the
environment, reducing pollutant emissions and promoting
ecological civilization.

As most of the Company’s operation is office-based, the
Company is committed to minimizing the impact of office
impact on the environment by means of green office initiatives.
In terms of energy efficiency targets, the Company strives for
its energy use not to be significantly greater than the average
of its main operating regions. The measures adopted by the
Company include:

For the construction of weak current systems in branch
offices, the Company widely adopted environmentally-
friendly materials to maximize the utilization of materials and
reduce material waste and loss. We adopted low-energy and
information-based office devices, and ensured compliance
with operational specifications to extend their service life. New
integrated computer rooms, smart office platforms and other
new products are used to achieve energy saving and emission
reduction in the office area.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE
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We further increased office automation and established
collaborative office platforms and various office systems
such as business management system, human resources
management system, financial management system, capital
management system, reimbursement system and knowledge
management system, with a focus on improving the credit
and standard finance business platform, partnership finance
business platform, data analysis and management platform
and private cloud infrastructure platform, so as to establish
standard management procedures to boost operational
efficiency.

The Company has designated the Canteen Management
System and Office Equipment Management System to
actively respond to the national green and low-carbon policy,
vigorously advocate green office, set the goal of low-carbon
operation, and create a green and environmentally friendly
working environment.

We promote paperless office practices through introduction of
company-wide office automation. We encourage double-sided
printing to reduce paper consumption and the use of durable
items and recyclable and reusable items instead of disposable
office items, and recommend our employees to use video
and telephone conferencing for offsite meetings to reduce
consumption arising from the accommodation and travel of
employees participating in the meetings. The temperature is
not to be lower than 26 degrees Celsius during the cooling
period, and the temperature is not to be higher than 22
degrees Celsius during the heating period. We advocate for
employees to develop environmentally-friendly habits such
as turning off the lights when not in use, saving water, and
turning off air conditioners after meetings or office hours. We
encourage civilized dining, rigorously enforce frugal spending,
oppose food waste, do not provide luxurious dishes, prohibit
the consumption of protected wild animals, and focus on
guiding our employees to develop good habits of cherishing
and saving food.

RS HERERHS

E-FEERFTMABBL B
BRMAFE BUXKEERR
ANBEREERRSG HMHEERR
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EEESBEBIE BHERE
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EEEMABYIEE ABEER
B-RERELEREX
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BLRR REERETAE B
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s B % 2 3 T A dn B AT B e B A
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As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s key environmental H E2022F12A318 AR ARIE
data (covering Chongging Headquarters region, excluding BRHSE (CREEFAIMME - T8
other branches in Mainland China and institutions in Hong FEHBEAEMs T #EBERE ST
Kong region) are as follows: EHE) AT :
Name Unit 2022 2021
=r By 2022%F 20214

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Intensity From the Headquarters'
BEBRERBHEHREREE

Vehicle emission kg 12,000 69,200
EHEN T

Canteen natural gas emission kg 90 80
RERARPEN T

Emission from electricity consumption kg 550,231.43 542,1562.22
BHEABER T

Total greenhouse gas emission kg 562,323.12 611,431.32
LREREHME T

Total greenhouse gas emission intensity kg/m? of office area 55.3 60.1
BREREBHNEE TR/ FHAREE@ME

Air Pollutant Emissions of the Official
Vehicles from the Headquarters?

HMEBMARERRTRYHFERE?

NO, kg 25.66 149.8
RE{L¥I(NO,) T
SO, kg 0.076 0.43
AL (SOy) T
co kg 55.13 317.91
— &Lk (CO) T
PM kg 2.5 14.36
FERL ) F=

Resources Consumption and
Intensity from the Headquarters?®
RRBERHEEREE

Total power consumption thousand kWh 70.37 87.45
HEH#E 8

Total power consumption intensity kWh/m? of office area 73.11 80.34
AERERE B/ PR AKRERE

Total water consumption thousand ton 0.49 0.68
Akies =4

Total water consumption intensity tons/m? of office area 0.51 0.71
AKBERE WA, P KEEmEE

Total natural gas consumption 10 thousand m?® 0.25 0.28
AAREREES B K

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Name Unit 2022 2021
=1 B 2022%F 20214
Total natural gas consumption intensity mé3/m? of office area 0.26 0.29
RARBERBERE SLFORE R OREEEE
Total gasoline consumption (Vehicles) 10 thousand liters 0.49 2.93
AREERE (98) &7t
Total gasoline consumption intensity (Vehicles) liter/vehicle 2,450 2,441.67
FUHERRERE (RE) /i
Paper consumption tons 1.7 1.9
EERE 4
Non-hazardous Waste Generation and
Intensity from the Headquarters
RRBEEBRREYELEEREE
Kitchen waste generation liter 25,000 33,169
ERNBEAS Ft
Intensity of kitchen waste generation liter/person 50 66.07
EENREETE FAIN
Note 1: Due to the business nature of the Company, the emission of 7 MRAATIEEME B =R
greenhouse gasgs mainly comprlses the ¢m|SS|on as a result g B B Y R IOR 438 B B 0B
of fuel combustion from mobile sources, i.e., greenhouse gas
emission of vehicles. Eﬁ‘%}#ﬁﬂ( ’ ED /%E%/E?ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ& ©
Note 2: Due to the business nature of the Company, exhaust emission Z2: HBRARBEBUE BERIEREE
mainly comprises vehicle emission. = TE R

Note 3:

In 2022, total mileage of vehicles was approximately 28,210.72 km
and gasoline consumption was 4,876.34 liters.

All the Company’s vehicles are light vehicles running on gasoline.
The emission factors of nitrogen oxides (NOy), sulfur oxides (SOx)
and particulates are 0.885g/km, 0.0147g/liter and 0.0848g/km
respectively.

The Company’ s vehicles are powered by unleaded gasoline.
Emission factors of carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH.) and
nitrous oxide (N.O) are 2.36 kg/liter, 0.000253 kg/liter and
0.001105 kg/liter.

As part of the real properties at the Chongqing headquarters of the
Company were leased to other parties as places of business, there
are difficulties in calculating the intensity of resources consumption
for each building (including water consumption intensity).

20224 - BURTTEL A B2 49/428,210.72
NE HRERHE B4,876.34 R F °

RABR B RER)TE L Hh
AWREL ST E R AR R A INOYHE
WAR 8 50.8855% /R B ALY
(SONHE IR 2 /0.01475 /A F - %
R (R 850.08487 /N8 o

AAREHFHFEAEN VBB =
S CONEMEE B2.36T 7,/ R
F+ B KT (CH.) B 7R 21 A0.000253F
%/ AT S T (N0 B R 8 A
0.001105F 52/ AFt»

i3 HBRARARABELIHHYWELALSR
HMTERMRNIEE S BUNE
EREYGEERERNTEER (8
BREKERE) °
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Given that the Company is engaged in the financial business which
is office-based with low energy consumption and low pollution, the
environmental impact of the Company’s operation is mainly caused
by greenhouse gas emission from vehicles and indirect greenhouse
gas emission from electricity and water consumption. The Company
is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste, and
product packaging materials as a result of its operation activities. It
did not encounter any problems in sourcing water. The Company’s
non-hazardous waste is collected and disposed of by the property
management service company.

Based on years of historical experience over the years, there will not
be any major climate change in the place where the Company is
located and material climate-related issues will not have any impact
on the Company’s daily operations.

In 2022, the Company reduced the use of cars, reducing car
emissions by 57,200 kg. Affected by the epidemic in 2022, the
number of employees working from home increased, resulting in a
decrease in water and electricity consumption in 2022 compared
with 2021. Water consumption reduced by 1,900.23 cubic meters
compared to last year, and electricity consumption reduced by
70,800.12 kWh compared to last year. The Company will continue
to implement the above measures on energy saving, waste recycling
and reuse as well as office automation, while proactively conducting
studies on implementing other environmental protection measures.

B. SOCIAL

The Company values talents and is devoted to recruiting
and retaining high-caliber employees for its own sustainable
growth. The Company values and treats the employees as
equals, safeguards their rights and offers them opportunities of
training and development, thus enabling employees to perform
to the best of their ability.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Employment and Labor Practices:

(1) Employment:

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had a total
of 914 employees (Full-time) in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, amongst which there were 910 mainland
employees and 4 Hong Kong employees. In terms of
education background, 746 employees (82%) have
bachelor's degree or above, and 168 employees
(18%) have received post-secondary education and
below. In terms of lines of work, 424 employees
(46%) are front-office staff, and 490 employees
(54%) are middle-office and back-office supporting
staff. In terms of age, 98 employees (11%) are aged
20-30; 534 employees (58%) are aged 31-40; 206
employees (23%) are aged 41-50; and 76 employees
(8%) are aged 51 and above.

In strict compliance with applicable laws and
regulations including the Labor Law of the PRC, the
Labor Contract Law of the PRC, the Implementation
Regulation of the Labor Contract Law of the PRC,
the Law on Safeguarding Women’s Interests and
Rights of the PRC and the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, the Company upholds the principle
of gender equality. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company had 482 male employees and 432 female
employees, with a gender ratio of 5:5.

1. BEREEBHER:

(1)

E1& -

BH 220224128318 ' &
NEIEBE THEE A914
AN RPBRRAMEEE T
BES A E T910%
BEBEBET4H - -HEFE
D AR R ET46 A 15
tb82% » KR&HE R AT168
AN (hEE18% - ZFTB R4
D :RIZ 8 T424 A 14
tb46% - BEZFAEB
490 A * 1h tE54% 2 G Bk
219 :20-305%98 A " 15 kb
11%  831-405%534 A * 1k
th58% * 41-505%206 A -
HE23% 51 & F76
A1 H8% °

KRB ERIEEST (FEA
REMB B E) - (P E
AREMBLEHEREE) -
(FEARELNMHLEHE
B E B M BA) (P E
ARENB G ZE=RE
EY HERBSHE ER
BHl) FXEEEHR B
Mt ERA B E2022
F12A31B 2 A EB S
T EM482 A #4432
A R &S5
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In the course of recruitment, the Company treats job
applicants equally and does not discriminate them
on the grounds of national origin, race, nationality,
gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political
affiliation, marital status and other social identity. It
establishes employment relations based on legal,
fair and equal negotiation. In the course of day-to-
day management, the Company does not take into
consideration their national origin, race, nationality,
religion, age, sexual orientation, political affiliation,
marital status and other social identity in their
welfare, treatment and promotion.

In 2022, the employee dismissal/resignation rate
was 19%, covering employees who resigned
themselves and those dismissed by the Company
based on performance and competence. By gender,
the dismissal/resignation rates are 19% for male
employees and 18% for female employees.

By age group, the dismissal/resignation rates are
22% for employees aged 20-30, 20% for employees
aged 31-40, 15% for employees aged 41-50 and
15% for employees aged 51 and above.

The Company maintains strict compliance with
relevant national and regional requirements
for termination of employment relations. As to
employees’ voluntary resignation, the Company
negotiates with employees on an equal footing
and respects their decisions. Termination of labor
contracts, termination negotiation, dismissal and
other procedures are conducted in accordance
with laws. For dismissal due to employees’ violation
of laws, regulations and rules, the Company will
proceed as permitted by laws and regulations and
with reference to the Company’s “Employee Manual”.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(2) Health and Safety: 2 REHEZZE:

The Company has always attached importance
to employees’ occupational health and safety. It
complies with applicable laws and regulations,
including the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC and the Implementation
Regulations of the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
in establishing and maintaining a safe, healthy and
people-oriented office environment to guarantee
employees’ interests and rights. From 2017 to 2022,
there was no case of work-related death or serious
injury.

According to the legal requirements of national and
regional governments, the Company practices a
working hour system of no more than 8 working
hours a day and no more than 40 hours a week.
Meanwhile, in the interest of staff’s work-life balance,
we safeguard their rights to reasonable leave and
provide them with various kinds of leave, e.g., public
holiday leave, statutory holidays, annual leave, marital
leave, maternity leave and paternity leave, nursing
leave, funeral leave, sick leave, absence leave and
work-related injury leave.

The Company attaches great importance to
organizational culture building and employee care,
promotes cultural cohesion through employee
care, and incorporates corporate values and
social responsibility into organizational culture. In
2022, the Company implements and highlights
employee care activities in several aspects: through
the establishment of a digital communication
platform, blessings, interactions and special
activities will be pushed during the festivals such
as Chinese New Year and Mid-Autumn Festival,
which makes employees can get the corporate
care by their mobile phones and also enhance the
stickiness between employees and employees,
and between employees and the Company; the
quarterly human resources internal magazine will
be issued to convey the Company’s strategy and
summarize the industry trends; the “Hanwha Fan”
with the themes of employee care and workplace
norms will be continuously promoted through the
Enterprise WeChat. The multi-pronged approach
puts the corporate culture on the ground and
effectively enhances employees’ sense of belonging,
responsibility and team pride.
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(3)

In terms of the construction of the honor system, the
Company continues to carry out the five-year and
tenth-anniversary recognition of employee service,
and issue honorary certificates, thank-you letters and
customized exclusive souvenirs to award-winning
employees every year, in recognition of employees’
dedication and inheritance of corporate culture. In
addition, the Company also recognizes outstanding
employees, outstanding teams, and outstanding
work cases of the year through the annual evaluation
work, establishes a model of behavior, and stimulates
a sense of honor and enthusiasm for work.

Organizational Development and Training:

In terms of organization management, on the basis
of the successful completion of the restructuring of
the Company and business units and the upgrade of
the job grade system, we comprehensively promoted
the restructuring of the digital combat organization
system, build an agile organization structure,
enhance the vitality, cohesion, creativity and combat
power of the organization, integrate resources,
coordinate operations, improve the market expansion
capability and comprehensive service capability of
the war zone team, and enhance the core value
of the Company’s business network. At the same
time, it accelerates digital process reengineering and
further reconstructs and innovates in organization,
talent and mechanism in order to establish a new
organizational system that matches the Company’s
strategy.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In terms of employee development, the Company
has realized the continuous and stable operation
of the digital management function, and the
Company’s training data has also been effectively
controlled. The combination of online and offline,
all-round penetration, encouraging employees to
use fragmented time for continuous learning, and
making every effort to build a learning organization:
online courses “Time Light Listening”, quarterly
learning competitions, live broadcast of business
knowledge themes, and the Company’s book corner
“Hanlin Book Sea”. The digital learning platform
breaks through the limitations of time and space
and efficiently meets customized learning and
development needs. As of 31 December 2022, the
total learning hours of the Company’s employees
were 7,312 hours, and the per capita learning hours
were 8 hours.

The percentage of employees received trainings in
2022 by gender: 50% male and 50% female; by
employee category: 70% general staff/supervisors,
20% department heads, and 10% general managers
or above.

The average training hours per employee by
gender: 7 hours for male and 5 hours for female;
by employee category: 12 hours for general staff/
supervisors, 5 hours for department heads and 2
hours for general managers or above.

RS HERERHS
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(4) Performance and remuneration and

benefits:

We combine the needs of organization and business
transformation, establish an open and shared,
pay-for-performance distribution mechanism,
fully mobilize employees’ subjective initiative, and
actively explore the three-tier partnership model of
the Company, business group and each business
division. We will build a more incentive-based
market-oriented salary system, establish a shared
performance management mechanism, and rebuild
the Company’s performance appraisal system
with efficiency indicators as the center. To fully
stimulate the enthusiasm of the staff, to achieve
the common construction of the platform, career
creation and value sharing. The welfare system is
centered on caring for employees’ health, creating
a triangle protection system of social insurance,
health checkups and commercial insurance to give
employees comprehensive and practical protection.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(5) Labor Standards: (5) BT %A

The Company strictly complies with the Labor Law
of the PRC, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC, the
Law on Safeguarding Women'’s Interests and Rights
of the PRC, the Law on the Protection of Minors
of the PRC, the Special Rules on Labor Protection
of Female Employees of the PRC, the Employment
Promotion Law of the PRC and other applicable laws
and regulations, as well as the local labor standards
where employees are located. In terms of personnel
recruitment, the Group complies with national and
local regulations and treats all employees equally
and fairly without discriminatory policies. In terms of
employee management, working hours and salary
and benefits are implemented in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations, and relevant reward
and punishment and daily management policies and
systems are clearly defined and communicated to
the employees. Employees are encouraged to have
friendly communication with the Company. Prior to
the establishment of employment relations, it carries
out strict identity screening and has never hired
minors. The relationship between the Company and
employees is fair and equal. The employment of the
Company'’s staff is subject to laws and their consent.
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RE-HE2RER

2.

wE

Operation Practices:

(1) Supply Chain Management:

The Company is committed to building a responsible
supply chain, based on the principles of “seeking
truth from facts, supervising according to law”,
“openness, fairness and justice”, and “combining
supervision with work effectiveness” to build mutual
trust and win-win cooperation relationship with
suppliers.

In the process of evaluating suppliers, the Company
adheres to the combination of offline and online
methods, strictly controls the process, adopts
multiple comparison principles, and selects the
best suppliers. At the same time, the Company
attaches great importance to the social and
environmental responsibilities assumed by suppliers
and their performances. Under the same conditions,
priority is given to purchasing energy-saving and
environmentally-friendly products that have passed
environmental labeling product certification, energy-
saving product certification, or other certifications
recognized by the state.

In terms of banking, the Company has cooperated
with- more than 50 banks to obtain credit lines for
credit guarantee business of more than RMB40
billion. The five largest cooperative banks of the
Group each provided 32% of the bank financing
guaranteed by us, and the largest cooperative bank
provided 14.5% of the total financing guaranteed by
the Group.

In 2022, the Company is not aware of any major
actual and potential negative impacts caused by
any suppliers due to business ethics, environmental
protection and improper labor measures.
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For office network, we selected China Unicom as
service provider. China Unicom has established
a “three-in-one” green management system,
including green concept, green practice and
green performance. It continued to implement
the Special Plan for Energy Conservation
and Emission Reduction for 2017-2020, and
formulated and implemented the “Special Action
for Cost Reduction and Efficiency Reduction” and
the “Special Implementation Plan for Pollution
Prevention and Control”. Meanwhile, it strived to
improve environmental management capabilities,
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, improve refined
management level, and established a long-term
mechanism for green development, contributing to
the prevention and control of pollution.

For office stationery, we selected Deli brand. As the
largest conglomerate specializing in office and school
supplies in China, Deli has engaged environmental
management experts as its environmental protection
consultants to inspect and rectify the environmental
protection treatment equipment, production process,
operation process, production materials and
emission standards at each business unit, after that
the aforesaid aspects will be monitored and tested
by its environmental officers all the time; the Group’s
production safety management office conducts
environmental hygiene supervision and inspection
on all units and records relevant information in the
standing books.

In 2022, the Company was not aware of any actual
or potential significant negative influence due
to misconduct of suppliers in business ethnics,
environmental protection and labor measures.
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(2) Product Responsibility:

The Company is committed to providing outstanding
customer experience and ensuring that the provision
of products and services is legal, effective and safe.

The Company possesses a substantial amount of
information of corporate and individual customers
due to its business nature. Thus, it attaches great
importance to protecting customer information in
compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations
relating to health and safely, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters of products and services and
the redress method. It also adopted the following
protective measures:

Enhance customers’ self-protection awareness
and avoid information leakage from the source. In
the course of business promotion and processing,
we properly conduct warning of information
security so that customers are able to develop
clear understanding of the danger of information
security breach, learn how to strengthen information
protection and identify the authenticity of suggestive
information, and know about information theft and
how to deal with information leakage, etc.

Strengthen internal management to formulate a long-
lasting mechanism. On one hand, the Company
has optimized customer information management
mechanism, formulated standards for collection,
utilization and storage management of customers’
information and set limitation on operators’
access to information and contents according to
authorization and roles in the business system. The
Company keeps customers’ personal data properly
and forbids access by unrelated personnel. For
the personal credit system in particular, it also sets
up special position of credit search for designated
personnel. It keeps borrowing records with regard
to the borrowing authorization and scope strictly in
compliance with file access requirements.
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Enhance position management. We strictly identify
positions handling customer information and
confidential materials and forbid unrelated personnel
to have access to confidential information. We strictly
regulate resigned staff's hand-over of files involving
customer information and request them to sign the
“Resigned Staff Confidentiality Undertaking”.

Enhance monitoring and accountability. We conduct
irregular review on the standardization of customer
file keeping and access as well as detect and rectify
hazards and loopholes in customer information
management work in a timely manner. We effectively
eliminate the non-compliance with regulations and
misconduct so as to block loopholes of leakage of
confidential information by means of establishing
supervisory and accountability.

Strengthen customer information security and
confidentiality management with technological
approach. We have established the internal network,
external network and non-military region segregation
on the business system network level by means
of security devices so as to realize secured and
controllable visit of the Internet. We have also set
up intrusion inspection, loophole screening and log
auditing on the application level to ensure stable
operation of each system and avoid the loss and
tampering of customer information, while establishing
the comprehensive information security system to
ensure that daily customer behavior is secured and
compliant. We have established the data warehouse
for data centralization, as well as data analysis
and presentation through BI, which prevents data
leakage.
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(3) Anti-corruption:

In line with the attitude of being responsible
to shareholders, investors and employees, the
Company attaches great importance to anti-
corruption and governance. The Company has an
internal control and audit department to conduct
regular compliance reviews on its business and
management.

The Company adopts a zero-tolerance principle
in the fight against corruption and related non-
compliances. Upholding business ethics, it
formulated the “Employee Manual” and other
relevant rules. The manual clearly states that
employees should work with high professional ethics,
conduct with integrity, act with good faith, and that
any employee who is found to be involved in any
act of corruption, bribery or embezzlement will be
considered as having committed a serious violation
of discipline and will be dismissed by the Company
according to laws and regulations and without
any economic compensation. All employees have
signed the “Integrity Building Undertaking Letter”,
undertaking that they will not engage in any act in
violation of Company’s rules or regulations, work
ethics and the requirements set out in the letter
during their employment, otherwise they shall bear
all responsibilities and consequences (including
but not limited to civil compensation and criminal
responsibility).

In addition, the Company carries out educational
campaigns on anti-corruption on a regular basis,
using real cases to raise employees’ awareness
against corruption.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was
not involved in any corruption litigation against the
Company or its staff.
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Community:

The senior management of the Company is committed to
social responsibility. In 2022, due to the continued impact
of the COVID-19 epidemic, most industry associations
and summit forums suspended and reduced their offline
events or switched to online events. Following the
requirements of epidemic prevention and control, the
management of the Company adopted diversified ways
to participate in public activities to spread the concept of
inclusive finance and fulfilled and social responsibility of
the Company as an inclusive financial service provider.

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang was elected Vice Chairman of
Chongaing Federation of Industry and Commerce ( EET
T8 ) in May 2022. In December, he was successively
elected executive committee member of China Federation
of Industry and Commerce ( B T#§H#) and Executive
Chairman of China Federation of Mergers and Acquisitions
Association (Z2H /2 &) . In December 2022, the
Western Financial Chamber of Commerce of Chongging
(EEE ML /A E) was officially inaugurated. Mr.
Zhang Guoxiang of the Company was elected as the first
president and the company was elected as the president.

The company long-term adhere to care for employees,
build harmonious labor relations, comply with relevant
laws and regulations. In 2022, the company was rated as
Chongging AA level Harmonious labor relations enterprise.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2013 as a
company with limited liability.

The scope of business of the Company as reflected on the business
license includes investment business, investment management and
investment advisory.

The Group mainly offers diversified and comprehensive financial
services to serve the financing and business needs of SMEs and
microenterprises under several business lines such as digital
services, credit guarantee, small loans, internet finance, financial
factoring, capital management and financing leases in China.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on page 148
of this report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the paragraphs headed “Business Review”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this report. Descriptions of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are provided in this Report of the Board
of Directors on pages 110 to 126. Particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 can be found in this Report of
the Board of Directors on pages 117. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on pages 8 of this
report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, important relationships with its stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations are contained and
available in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
page 87 to page 109, respectively. The above discussions constitute
part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The aforementioned proposal is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders in general mesting.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
last five financial years are set out on page 8 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR BANKING PARTNERS/SUPPLIERS

The five major banking partners of the Group each provided 32%
of the bank financing we guaranteed. The largest banking partner
accounted for 14.5% of the total financing the Group guaranteed.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group does not have major
suppliers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Qur customers primarily include SMEs, micro-enterprises and
individuals. For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue derived
from our five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of our
total net fee and interest income.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on pages 152 to
153 of the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” in the
financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on pages 152 to 153 in the
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” of this report and in
note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to RMB390 million (31 December 2021: RMB418 million).

According to actual conditions of the Company and its needs
arising from its coordinated sustainable development in the future,
the Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE

FEEF

AEEBEFEFEREP/NHEEREA
BEFE -REE2022F12A318 I FE
BFEAERAREFHKRAGRBAFEELAE
ST U 89 R A 80% e

BMEESIRFEANETHE AL (B
EEMM) EMEARNABEEITRAS%
NENESHBRRNAKRELREFH
BiEmiEs-

W3- BERKRE

H E2022F12A31HIEFE RN KR A
MAEENYE BELRBEEIDFE
B B 7 3R & MY 5E20 o

RN

H E2022F12A31HIEFE RN AR A
BMAHESHFBHRARE E152HE
13BN BHREZ [6EHREERE
=1

it

AEEAREERANRANHEESDF
BENRAREF152EE163E A G
REmZBR  ARMBHREIMES -

AoER#ES

H 2£2022F12H318 A Al WA DB %
fB& B ARBE3.90E T (E 1F2021F12
A31H: ARB418BTT) ©

RIE AR R R EB A R F KK AT E #
FEENE R BEESTERZRTERE
2022F 12 A3 1HILFEMRIRKE -



Report of the Board of Directors

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 10 June 2015 and 3 November 2015, the company issued
corporate bonds of “14 Hanhua 01” and “14 Hanhua 2”
respectively.

“14 Hanhua 01” expired on 10 June 2020, “14 Hanhua 2" expired
on 3 November 2019, the Company has paid all capitals and
interests in accordance with the terms of the bond.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INDEMNITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors and
the supervisors of the Company (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’, supervisors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors, supervisors
and officers of the Group.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 27 May 2015, the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company
considered and approved the proposal on the grant of bonus in the
form of shares in open market to the senior and middle to senior
management of the Company under the share incentive scheme
(the “Scheme”), a medium and long-term incentive scheme to
incentivise senior and middle to senior management. The Board
was authorized to grant shares to participants of the Scheme on a
trading day of H shares of the Company before 31 December 2017.
The incentive fund is based on a portion of the annual performance-
based remuneration of the participants. The validity period for
purchasing shares under the Scheme ended on 31 December
2017.
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EEEWE

The scope of participants includes the senior management and
middle to senior management of the Company or its subsidiaries
or branches upon the implementation of the Scheme. Independent
non-executive Directors, supervisors and Shareholders holding 5%
or more of the equity interests in the Company and their associates
are excluded from the scope of participants under the Scheme.
The list of participants and the proportion of allocation shall be
determined by the Board or its authorised institution and reviewed
by the supervisors of the Company. The source of shares of the
Scheme is the issued public shares of the Company in the H shares
market, and such shares are acquired through dealings in the open
market. The source of funds is the incentive fund accumulated
in the Company by the participants (comprised of the portion of
yearend performance-related remuneration of the participants).
Participants of the Scheme can elect to contribute 40% to 100%
of their annual performance related remuneration to the share
incentive fund and the total amount of funds under the Scheme
during its validity period shall not exceed the total share incentive
fund contributed by the participants.

Details of the Scheme has been published by the Company on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company on
16 February 2015. In 2015, the Scheme was gradually implemented
in accordance with the relevant procedures. 5,738,623 H shares
of the Company were acquired from the open market. Prior to
the beginning of the Reporting Period, all of the above 5,738,623
H Shares were unlocked and vested to individuals. There are no
unvested H Shares remaining under the Scheme.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Our risk management committee is the highest decision-making
organisation on risk management, fully responsible for risk
management of the Group. Our internal control departments
including risk management and internal control and audit as well as
other departments and business department form a system of pre-,
during and post-incident risk management and internal control.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has identified
our actual risks including credit risk, market risk, operational risk,
liquidity risk, of which credit risk is our major risk. Besides, this
report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice for
anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and investors
are advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the securities
of the Company.
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Credit Risk Management

In the light of the characteristics of credit risk, the Company
shifted gradually the way of risk assessment from single business
project to that on product and business model, and formulated
admission criteria, investigation standard, credit standard, operation
procedure, post-loan management and method of payment call for
each product. The Company made amendment and improvement
to policies and operation standard on admission and investigation
of guarantee, loan, factoring and leasing, specific operation
requirements and management requirement of post-guarantee and
loan to ensure the suitability and feasibility of the policies during
the year. For details, please refer to Note 34(a) to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Liquidity Risk Management

“Liquidity safety” is the first management objective for our Finance
Planning Department, which is responsible for overall management
of our liquidity risk. Each subsidiary is required to compile a daily
sheet of monetary liquidity to submit to the Finance Planning
Department. Our Finance Planning Department dynamically adjusts
the total amount and structure of assets and liabilities. This is to
ensure the maintenance of sufficient cash reserve to meet short-
term and long-term liquidity needs, thereby ensuring the Company’s
liquidity security. For details, please refer to Note 34(c) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Market Risk Management

Based on its exposure to the specific market risks, the Company
established stringent industrial and regional credit policy. In respect
of the industrial credit policy, it conformed to the national industrial
policies and industry development trends, selected the best
sectors and made dynamic adjustment. In respect of the regional
credit policy, it has taken into account of the local credit market
conditions, regional risk level, competition level to control the scale
and use of the credit facility. Coupled with differentiated pricing
administrative measures based on customer classification, scale of
single transaction, and income-to-cost ratio, this enabled “better
than average management, preventive system and revenue covering
cost”.
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Operational Risk Management

The Company prevented the operational risk from the origin
through strict management of authorization and implementation
of installation of two persons, dual position and double duties
for key positions, and established a system of normalized check
and reporting and feedback and improvement mechanism of risk
incident, which effectively prevented the operational risk.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The fourth session of the Board was elected in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 16 October 2022. The appointment of the
fourth session of the Board became effective on 16 October 2022.

The fourth session of the Board comprised a total of twelve
Directors, including three executive Directors, five non-executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and as of the date of this report are
set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of this report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received the annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of their independence, and
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
CONTRACTS

SERVICE

Each of executive Directors and non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors renewed the service contract
with the Company on 16 October 2022, commencing on 16
October 2022 and ending on the expiry of the fourth session of the
Board.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS, TRANSACTIONS OR
ARRANGEMENTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or the supervisors or any entity connected
with them has any material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract, transaction or arrangement of significance to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Except as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31
December 2022, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a
business which causes or may cause any significant competition
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Under the remuneration policy of the Group, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, tenure, commitment, responsibilities and
performance (as the case may be) of our Directors, supervisors and
the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors, supervisors and the senior management.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group is required to participate in contributions to retirement
schemes organised by the respective municipal governments of
the PRC whereby the Group is required to pay annual contributions
to retirement for the PRC based employees at certain rate of
the standard wages determined by the relevant authorities in the
PRC during the year. The Group has no other material obligation
for payment of retirement benefits to employees beyond the
contributions to retirement described above. The details of the
Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in note 7 and note 8 to the
financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” in this report, there was no change to
any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to any
Directors and supervisors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since 1 January 2022.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were required, (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:
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EEEHE

Interests in the Company (i) REQTFWER
Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage
No. of shares in relevant in total share
Name of Shareholder Position Class of share Nature of interests held  class of share capital
EEBRHERN  GRAEHZ
BRRE®B B BB ER BEtE BERGEE  ZHHESK LR
(Shares) (1) (%)° (%)
Zhang Guoxiang"! Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner/Interests of 453,185,762 13.21 9.85
REHO £ NER controlled corporation (Long position)
EnlEE A/ REEER (#2)
H Share Beneficial owner 585,971 0.05 0.01
HE& EREAA (Long position)
(#2)
\Wang Fangfei? Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner/ Interests of 231,532,653 6.75 5.03
TEE0 E=Z NER controlled corporation (Long position)
REEEER (#8)
Cui Weilan Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,058,742 0.06 0.04
ERR EZ NEBK EREEA (Long position)
(#8)
H Share Beneficial owner 648,005 0.06 0.01
HiR EREAA (Long position)
(#8)
Liu Jiaoyang Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
e - NER EEHEEA (Long position)
(#8)
Li Ruping (retired on Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,352,848 0.07 0.05
16 October 2022) £F NER ERERA (Long position)
FIT (H2022F10716H (#8)
BE)
Chen Zhonghua Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
B i EZ NER ExEAA (Long position)
(#2)
Qin Yong (retired on Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 588,212 0.02 0.01
16 October 2022) EZ NER ERBEA (Long position)
FE (R2022F10A16R (#8)
pi3ad)
He Yu Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 294,106 0.01 0.01
CES EE NER EREAA (Long position)
(#2)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang directly holds approximately 66.89% of
the equity interest of Huitai, which directly holds 450,416,901
Domestic Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang is deemed to be interested in the 450,416,901
Domestic Shares held by Huitai. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang also directly
holds 2,768,861 Domestic Shares of the Company.

2. Ms. Wang Fangfei directly holds 55% of the equity interest
of Chongqging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd.* (“Chongqing
Jiulong”), which directly holds 231,532,653 Domestic Shares
of the Company. Accordingly, Ms. Wang Fangfei is deemed
to be interested in the 231,532,653 Domestic Shares held by
Chongqing Jiulong.

3. As at 31 December 2022, the issued Domestic Shares and
the H Shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 Shares and
1,170,000,000 Shares.

4. As at 31 December 2022, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of
the Company in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which are required (i) to be recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (ii) to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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Report of the Board of Directors

(ii) Interests in associated corporations

None of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or supervisors or any of their respective
associates was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the persons (not being a Director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) or corporations
having interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO and who were directly and/or indirectly deemed to
be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company are listed as follows:
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Approximate Approximate

percentage percentage in

No. of in relevant total share

Name of Shareholder Class of share Nature of interests shares held class of share capital

EEERGERZ EREAY 2

BRRAR REGER EHEtE BFEROEE RN BOBEA

(share) (FZ) (%) “ (%) ©

Huitai Domestic Share Beneficial owner 450,416,901 1313 9.79
2% NER ERBEBA (Long position)
(##%8)

Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Domestic Share Beneficial owner 432,188,780 12.60 9.40
(‘Loncin Holdings") "® NE R BExEBA (Long position)
& EROO (58)

Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (‘Loncin Group”)®  Domestic Share Interests of controlled 432,188,780 12.60 9.40
BEEE0 NER _ corporation (Long position)
REEEER (#78)

Chengdu ShunRunZe Enterprise Management Domestic Share Beneficial owner 280,000,000 8.16 6.09
Consulting Co., Ltd. AE R ExERA (Long position)
KB EEREABRAA (#7)

Beijing Daoyang Zhengde Information Domestic Share Beneficial owner 270,000,000 7.87 5.87
Consulting Co., Ltd. NE R BExEEA (Long position)
TREGEREEAABRAR (1#8)

Wang Mingyue Domestic Share Beneficial owner 269,824,593 7.87 5.87
TE A AER ERBBA (Long position)
(1#8)

Chongging Qianbaitai Management Co., Ltd.  Domestic Share Beneficial owner 249,136,926 7.26 5.42
EETEARGEERERAA NE R EaliBA (Long position)
(#2)

Chongging Jiulong Domestic Share Beneficial owner 231,632,653 6.75 5.03
EENE AE R ERBEBA (Long position)
(##8)

GF Fund Management Co., Ltd. H Share Beneficial owner 237,016,000 20.26 5.15
BREALEBBRATF Hi% ERBEA (Long position)
(##8)

China International Capital Corporation H Share Beneficial owner 138,914,000 11.87 3.02
HEERSRRNERAE Hi% ERHAA (Long position)
(#2)

Shandong State-owned Assets Investment ~ H Share Beneficial owner 95,000,000 8.12 2.07
Holding Co., Ltd. H& BREEA (Long position)
LREAEEAERBRRNBERAT (1#8)

Golden Sapientia Investments Ltd. H Share Beneficial owner 76,000,000 6.50 1.65
2EREERAA Hix ERBBA (Long position)
(##8)

Max Wisdom International Industrial Limited ~ H Share Beneficial owner 75,322,000 6.44 1.64
EREREEERAA Hi& ERBEBA (Long position)
(#7#8)

Hongkong Guanyu Feng Limited H Share Beneficial owner 58,804,864 5.03 1.28
ERTBEFERAH Hi% ERBEBA (Long position)
(#8)

1 22 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESERGERAR



Report of the Board of Directors

Notes:

1.

Loncin Holdings directly holds 432,188,780 Domestic Shares of the
Company. On 21 November 2022, Chongging No.5 Intermediate
People s Court issued a ruling approving Substantial consolidation
and restructuring plan of 13 companies including Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Restructuring Plan”). According to the Restructuring Plan,
the 432,188,780 domestic shares of the Company held by Loncin
Holdings (representing approximately 9.4% of the total shares of the
Company) will be used to offset the debt owed to the corresponding
creditors in proportion to their respective creditors’ rights after the
repayment of the debts owed to the creditors and fulfillment of the
conditions of the reorganization plan. The implementation period of the
Restructuring Plan shall be 12 months from the date of approval by the
Chongqing Intermediate Court, and Loncin Group shall be withdrawn
from the register of shareholders of the Company.

Loncin Group directly holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin
Holdings, which directly holds 432,188,780 Domestic Shares of the
Company. Accordingly, under the SFO, Loncin Group is deemed to
be interested in the 432,188,780 Domestic Shares held by Loncin
Holdings.

The 432,188,780 Shares held by Loncin Group and Loncin Holdings
are of the same interest and duplicated each other.

As at 31 December 2022, the issued Domestic Shares and
the H Shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 Shares and
1,170,000,000 Shares.

As at 31 December 2022, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of the
Company in issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no purchase,
sale or redemption of any listed securities of the Company by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the relevant
laws or the Articles of Association of the PRC that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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COMPANY’S ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITY
AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been actively performing our environmental, social
and governance responsibilities and conducting our business
in a socially-responsible way while creating monetary value
for our Shareholders. The Company strictly complies with the
requirements of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guides issued by the Stock Exchange, whereby the Company is
committed to incorporating the sustainable development principle
into our corporate development strategies and daily operation and
management and acting as a responsible corporate citizen. In
2022, the Company provided our staff with a premium development
platform and safe working environment. We protect the
environment, treasure the natural resources and spare no efforts in
reducing the impact of our operation on the environment. We value
our customers and suppliers, and provide premium product and
service and continuously optimize the management of our suppliers.

Pursuant to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the Company
prepared the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which
is set out from page 87 to page 109 of this report.

COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is able to comply with relevant requirements of laws,
regulations, rules and provisions of the Companies Ordinance, the
Listing Rules and SFO in Hong Kong, the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Basic Norms of Enterprise Internal
Control, Interim Measures for the Administration of Financing
Guarantee Companies, Guiding Opinions of China Banking
Regulatory Commission and People’s Bank of China on Pilot
Projects of Small Loan Companies, Guidance on Promoting the
Healthy Development of Internet Finance in the PRC etc., including
information disclosure, corporate governance and standard industry
operation, etc.. The Group has also adopted the Model Code in
Hong Kong.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the Company’s connected transactions in 2022 are as
follows:

On 10 January 2022, the Company and Chengdu Metallic
Materials (as transferor) entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to acquire, at the total
consideration of RMB116,000,000, an aggregate of approximately
14.29% equity interest in Sichuan Micro-credit (a direct non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company before the completion of the
transaction) from Chengdu Metallic Materials.

Upon completion of the Equity Transfer, the Company became the
sole shareholder of Sichuan Micro-credit, allowing the Company to
have control over the management of Sichuan Micro-credit, which is
conducive to the Company’s overall management and development
deployment of the whole micro-credit business.

As at the date of the entering into of the Equity Transfer Agreement,
the Company held approximately 85.71% equity interest in Sichuan
Micro-credit and Sichuan Micro-credit is a direct non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Chengdu Metallic Materials
holds approximately 14.29% equity interest in Sichuan Microcredit,
thus Chengdu Metallic Materials is a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level, and the Equity Transfer constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As one or more applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
Equity Transfer as calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules are more than 5% but less than 25%, the Company issued
an announcement regarding to the transaction, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 January 2022.

For details of the Company’s material related party transactions
in 2022, please refer to Note 35 of the financial statements. The
Company has made the required disclosure of remuneration of
directors and supervisors (please refer to financial statements). Save
for the aforementioned, other related party transactions as set out
in Note 35 to the financial statements did not constitute connected
transaction/continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that there are no other transactions that are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEEWE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and external auditors the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its Shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. As at the date of this report, the Board has adopted
the Code Provisions as its corporate governance code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the
required public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the selection
of auditors for 2023 of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Chairman of the Board

Zhang Jun

30 March 2023

* For identification purpose only
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2022, pursuant to the requirements set out in the PRC Company
Law and the Articles of Association, the Board of Supervisors of
the Company has attentively performed its duties and proactively
carried out supervision on the financial activities, internal control,
risk management, lawful operation as well as the performance of
duties by the Board and senior management of the Company, thus
effectively contributing to the optimization of governance of the
Company and to the healthy and sustainable development of the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF THE MAJOR WORKS OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors convened meetings of the Board
of Supervisors pursuant to laws and regulations. In 2022,
the Company held a total of 4 regular meetings of the supervisory
board, including: summarizing the work of the annual supervisory
board; reviewing the interim report; nominating candidates for non-
employee representative supervisors of the Fourth supervisory
board, reviewing the remuneration of supervisors; electing the
chairman of the fourth supervisory board, etc. and attended
two general meeting and eleven Board meetings. The Board
of Supervisors has supervised the general meeting and Board
meetings with regard to the legality, compliance and the procedure
of voting thereof. The Board of Supervisors has also supervised the
performance of duties by the Board and senior management.

Two non-employee representative supervisors of the Fourth
Supervisory Board were elected and approved at the First
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for 2022 held on
16 October 2022, and together with one employee representative
supervisor, they constitute the Fourth Supervisory Board. The term
of office of the supervisors of the fourth session of the Supervisory
Board shall commence on 16 October 2022.

The Board of Supervisors endeavored in conducting proper
finance supervision. By focusing on the compilation, verification
and disclosure of regular reports, the Board of Supervisors
communicated with external auditors and auditors on a regular
basis, strengthened the analysis of major issues that may affect
the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the financial
reports, timely followed up and gained knowledge of the changes
of regulatory requirements, and provided opinions and suggestions.
In accordance with relevant requirements, the Board of Supervisors
conducted supervision on the selection and appointment of external
auditors and auditors, and oversaw capital management of the
Company, and the management of insiders of inside information.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

ESgRE

The Board of Supervisors substantially participated in internal
control supervision. The Board of Supervisors regularly debriefed
special reports on the work of internal control and compliance, key
findings and rectification in internal audit and prevention and control
over non-compliance cases, and strengthened supervision on the
internal control formulation and assessment work.

The Board of Supervisors strengthened risk management
supervision. It paid attention to the major risks faced by the
industry and debriefed special reports with regard to the work of
risk management and liquidity risk management and provided timely
opinions and suggestions.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON RELEVANT MATTERS

Lawful Operation of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the business activities of the Company complied
with the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association, the
internal control system was improved, and the decision-making
procedures were lawful and valid. None of the Directors or senior
management of the Company was found to have violated the
relevant laws, regulations or the Articles of Association or harmed
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Authenticity of Financial Report. The financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 were prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs and were audited by KPMG in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing. The auditor
issued standard unqualified audit report.

Connected Transaction. On 10 January 2022, the Company
conducted a connected transaction with Chengdu Metallic Materials
(a connected person at the subsidiary level) to acquire 14.29%
equity interest in Sichuan Micro-credit for a total consideration of
RMB116,000,000. The Company made an announcement on 10
January 2022 in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles
of Association. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

Internal Control. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company continued to strengthen and optimize its internal control,
and the Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to the Report
on Assessment of Internal Control for 2022.

Implementation of resolutions passed at the general
meeting(s). The Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to
the reports and proposals submitted by the Board to the general
meetings in 2021, and having inspected the execution of the
resolutions of general meetings, concluded that the Board had
duly implemented the relevant resolutions passed at the general
meeting(s).

Opinions on Performance Assessment of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors, supervisors and
senior management were diligent in duly carrying out their duties
and were evaluated as qualified in the performance assessment.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
He Zhonghua

29 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EITHRE

Independent auditor’s report to
the shareholders of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanhua
Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 147 to 296, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS HRETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FRBETEEERERMAR X HE
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Ti LETRREHEBNER

BMRARERNFRERREFTRREE
E’J$IE BELEERNEHUAHPTBERER
BETEFLEXNERASE R &M

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses

FEUBBREATBENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iiij) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHUBEEHEIK)EB T A SHEEREREEH BN IEERKX ] [HE1(k)(ii) 3% 178 515

REKBEEBX | WETBE URMTZE14, 15, 16, 17726 -
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETSE EETPOMEHZSEE

Impairments of loans and advances to customers,
trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables
and receivables for factoring business (together as
“loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost”) and provisions for guarantee losses are both
the subjective areas due to the level of judgement
applied by management in determining allowances and
provisions.
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The Group uses the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model
to calculate the loss allowance in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (‘HKFRS 9”).
EEERBEESMBREERES R em I A%EA] &
FAEH{EEEL ([ECL ) WA E Bk EK -

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses included the following:

B AT iy DA SR AN 7N 51 2 1) B 50 K% 8 UK R TEDRL (B D HE IR
FELEBSHBNSEFEAFBEUTER:

® assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring of loans and
receivables measured at amortized cost and
guarantees, the credit grading process and the
measurement of impairment losses and provisions
for guarantee losses.
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BN ETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26

EEHEHHBEREHFIKNNEB LA CHEEREKHEES BN ESEE X [H1(k)(ii)Z 1T &
RERPIEEE %, | BEEZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]26 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

The determination of loss allowances using the
expected credit loss model is subject to a number
of key parameters and assumptions, including the
identification of loss stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default, exposures at default
and discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors. Management
judgment is involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.
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I8 JE I -

® assessing the reliability of the expected credit
loss model used by management in determining
loss allowances, including assessing the
appropriateness of the key parameters and
assumptions in the expected credit loss model,
including the identification of loss stages,
probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-
looking information and other management
adjustments.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BN ETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and

provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBBEATFENERRERRENBREEGNEREEHERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26

to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHHBHREXMEIKNNEB TR SHEERERBEEN BN EERKL]  [HZ1(k)(iii) % 1751 75 &

REXEERXIHE

FTEE U R K14, 15, 16, 177126 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

In particular, the determination of the loss allowances
and provisions for guarantee losses is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the
Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
expected credit losses and provisions for guarantee
losses are derived from estimates including the Group’s
historical losses, internal and external credit grading
and other adjustment factors.
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Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and
the existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.
The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable
amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
impairment losses and provisions for guarantee losses
as at the end of the reporting period.
EERAEREENBAER ERERZRZER
HoEULAZREAKRESE BERANMBARR B
WYl EeE REXEIRF EEFEHMEREA
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®* assessing the completeness and accuracy of
data used for the key parameters in the expected
credit loss model. For key parameters derived
from internal data relating to original loan or
guarantee agreements, we compared the total
balances of the loan list and guarantee list to
assess the accuracy of compilation of the list,
which contain information used by management
to assess impairment losses and provisions
for guarantee losses, with the general ledger
and compared individual loan and guarantee
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the loan list and in the guarantee list.
For key parameters derived from external data, we
selected samples to inspect the accuracy of such
data by comparing them with public resources.
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BN ETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26

EEHEHHBEREHFIKNNEB LA CHEEREKHEES BN ESEE X [H1(k)(ii)Z 1T &
RERPIEEE %, | BEEZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]26 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

We identified assessing expected credit loss allowance
of loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost and provisions for guarantee losses as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved and because of their
significance to the financial results of the Group.

F P DABE SR AN R 51 8 1) B 51 K% B W SR IE 1Y R (B 2E D
EREEEBENEEFEREAR THETE LN LS RE
EREHE REHEAEEEENKENRGELETE
T B B ANBERK AT ENE R R ERFIEN
BMEEBNMERBEELEFSNBTEIFAUARESS
I8 o

e for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the Group’s
internal records including historical loss experience
and type of collateral. As part of these procedures,
we challenged the reasons or modifications to
estimates and model parameters, considered
the consistency of management judgments. We
compared the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were
aligned with market and economic development.

s HUFLRTIBHENBWAZE KMETTTERE
HE BREIIBSKIERER LHELEX
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ERANABRED — B -HMABHL R P EANL
BREEMSME  FHEELRSEMIGIARKHE
ERIBENEN -

e for key parameters used in the expected credit
loss model which were derived from system-
generated internal data, assessing the accuracy
of input data by comparing the input data with
original documents on a sample basis. In addition,
we involved our IT specialists to assess the logics
and compilation of the overdue information of
loans for selected samples.

e HYUFTHAEAMEFEKNHEBEANTER  HFE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) AR ETEE (&)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

BEHEHMBREHZIKN)EBTAE SHEERERHEEN AN EERBX]  [H1(k)(i) %175 515
RERBIEEBL | HETBE  URM 14, 15, 16, 177126 -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEETER EESPNAEHZER

e evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of loans
and receivables measured at amortized cost and
guarantees has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether loans and
receivables measured at amortized cost and
guarantees are credit-impaired on a sample basis.
We analysed the portfolio by industry sector to
select samples in industries more vulnerable to the
current economic situation with reference to other
borrowers with potential increased credit risk. We
checked the overdue information, making enquiries
of the credit managers about the borrowers’
business operations, checking borrowers’ financial
information and researching market information
about borrowers’ businesses.

e HEEEREFLNENRUNERKAITFENER R
EWFIBEMERNERRREVEERESE B
ERNMOHEBARREEEEERARBENHED
SR - EREARESEEEEEERARENRE
REDERNEEM -RMBRBITED Y UE
BRI ARGt E M B R R EUCRIBE A EREIT O
BEXERIRERSEYERANTEARAEMER
VB TE {5 F R B A 18 RO AR AR AR R o R PIE B R
BAWER FEFHBEENSHREA BEE
RAGERARRMRL MEELERAMBRANL
EMN BEBRANMBEANARESERBE
RAEBHTHALE -
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B EITHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BRETEE (&)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

BEHEHMBREHZIKN)EBTAE SHEERERHEEN AN EERBX]  [H1(k)(i) %175 515
RERBIEEBL | HETTBE  URM 14, 15, 16, 177126 -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HREETER EESPNAEHZER

e for selected samples of loans and receivables
measured at amortized cost and guarantees that
are credit-impaired, evaluating management’s
assessment of the value of any property collateral
held by comparison with market prices based on
the location and use of the property and the prices
of neighbouring properties. We also evaluated
the timing and means of realization of collateral,
evaluated the forecast cash flows, challenged
the viability of the Group’s recovery plans and
evaluated other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contract terms.

e RMEEBMBEAMNER L FEBELREFERRE
B LA BRI AN EH B B B R R IR BURIB A FE IR E XY
BRAXNAEM-EHBRET HSEEEFAN
FPEERYNEREGMERENFEME AR
REABFENTSEBRETHER RIEETERE
WEERSRE -HMENE T ERYEHRNK
BEAA -FEERAATKERER HEEE
e SN EMETEE UEEEEER
TE B E Ath 38 FORR ©

* recalculating the amount of impairment and
provisions for 12 month and life time credit losses
using the expected credit loss model based on the
above parameters and assumptions for a sample
of loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost and guarantee losses where the credit risk of
the loan and guarantee has not, or has, increased
significantly since initial recognition, respectively.

e ER T HRMENEAFNBEHERESLX
REVERZ T B SR AN 5T 8 70 B 50 N B WK TR BY
WMEEENEREEEGSNHTEEMRE!T-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) AR ETEE (&)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBBEATFENERRERRENBREEGNEREEHERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHHBHREXMEIKNNEB TR SHEERERBEEN BN EERKL]  [HZ1(k)(iii) % 1751 75 &

RERPIEEE K, | HE B ZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]26 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

® evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment
of loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost and provisions for guarantee losses meet
the disclosure requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

o FHBLABEERBXAGT B8 E R EWRIAH REE
HNEREEEFSHBNMBERREMKER
BRERITEAERNREZ K

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments

AEERMIANAAEE

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements: Fair value
measurement” and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEHE U BE R [ HE1K) V)AL EEE T BRAR M E19 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEEI P EEZER

The Group’s financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss at 31 December 2022
comprised non-performing asset, equity instruments
held for trading, debt instruments held for trading and
private funds.
EREMN2022F12AIBN AR BEFEEHEHE
AEHERNERMEERFEINREER  EMMIEL
MHEBMNER TENMLEES -

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of
financial instruments included the following:
HFEeRIANAABE HANEAEXNFEE
IATRER:

e assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over the valuation, independent
price verification, front office/back office
reconciliations and valuation model approval for
financial instruments.

s EMMITEEEERMGE BLERRE AR
EHRFSRTAGERUEREBENBRER
BB R METOR R
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BN ETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

FEEMIBENAAEE (&)

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements: Fair value
measurement” and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHHBEE MK )L L EETE ]S BRURME9 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

At 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments was RMB2,073.0 million, of
which RMB29.9 million and RMB2,043.1 million were
classified under the fair value hierarchy as level 1 and 3
financial instruments respectively.

2022 12A31H E5EeMIANAARBERA
R¥2073.0BB T HA 2EAREF ERNE=E
BAnBEAENESRIAENAABEIIAARKE
209R BT MARE20431BE T

The valuations of the Group’s financial instruments use
market data where available. Where such observable
data is not readily available, as in the case of level 3
financial instruments, estimates need to be developed
using valuation models and valuation reports, if any,
issued by an independent licensed valuer, which can
involve significant management judgment.
BEEENARBEAENESRIENGEEATES
BTHEER - E RIS A EREER] EEIE F
BB AnBEFENESRIANBET AFER
REEERFAE Y EEE N GEMEHANGEERS
(B ETHE EERPE P REREMNE XN E-

e assessing the fair values of level 1 financial
instruments, on sample basis, by comparing the
fair values applied by the Group with publicly
available market data.

e ERERN BEXEBEEERANAABERER
FRAIERNTSER FEE-—BRAAEBER
ENERITANGKE

e engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the valuation results from
the valuation models used by the Group and the
reports issued by an independent licensed valuer
to value certain level 3 financial instruments and
to perform, on a sample basis, independent
valuations of level 3 financial instruments and
compare these valuations with the Group’s
valuations and the independent licensed valuer’s
reports. This included comparing the Group’s
and the independent licensed valuer’s valuation
models with our knowledge of current and
emerging practice, testing inputs to the fair value
calculations and establishing our own parallel
valuation models to perform revaluations.

s FMEAMBEEZRNI FEEEERHEES
WBLEEENMEMURENE=ZERAAE
EfftEMNeRITEAMERNFEERL R &
BEER HARBEEBRE=ZBERAAEBETE
NeEMTAETEIGEE THERMNEESER
HEEENIAEFNBIBEENTHENGE
RRETHEB -BZMOEABRESESRERIARE
BB A B Rk (B AT (4 (B R A B PR R
WATERITHERTEETHEE ARGENEA
BEARE FATHEREEITER-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BN ETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

FAEEMIBENAAEE (&)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements: Fair value
measurement” and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHHBEE [HE1K)iv)L L EETE ]S BRURME9 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

The Group has developed its own models to value
certain level 3 financial instruments, which also involves
significant management judgment.

Ion EEEEHBENE=ER 2 BHBETAENS
BMTAMAZETEERERE S REEENE
R -

We have identified assessing the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the
degree of complexity involved in valuing certain financial
instruments and because of the degree of judgment
exercised by management in determining the inputs
used in the valuation models.
HRERITARARBENN G RERNRIE UK
EREMEERGEANEBABRIREREEAGNRE
B HZABEER T AR BENTEIINIRERSE
FTEIE

e assessing whether the financial statement
disclosures appropriately reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

s HEVBHmXNBEBRERSNAEESIER
WEBER @BERUTEEEN SR IAMGKE
EN
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BN ETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

Consolidation of structured entities
EOtEBLER

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements: Subsidiaries
and non-controlling interests” and Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEME I BIHE [ HZ1()H B L AR HFFEFM L | 198 7 BR LR B 3239 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

Structured entities are generally created to achieve
a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities. The Group may acquire
or retain an ownership interest in, or act as a sponsor
to, a structured entity through issuing trust plans and
initiating partnerships.

EEECIREATREAERARMAREN B MR
BRI B WERENSEANREER EE - EEEA 6
BBBTEEXHERES SrtalMRIaBhEN
RAREIREEGNEZTHIAELEBLEIRTESR

e

.
METS o

In determining whether a structured entity is required
to be consolidated by the Group, management is
required to consider the power the Group is able to
exercise over the activities of the entity and the Group’s
exposure to and ability to influence its own returns from
the entity.

B EEERTRZEEBLEIBAAEEESO
HERN EREEFTEERESBUARLCIRBARE
BHAENREN UREDABERHGSEB(ERNE
N BER SO HAIEE -

The factors which management needs to consider
when determining whether a structured entity should
be consolidated or not are not purely quantitative and
need to be considered collectively.
HEHEERRZAEBLCIBRMASHBEITAA
AHEBEERN EREFTEERNAEZNIRTEAE
ety FEREAER-

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of consolidated
structured entities which the Group had consolidated
was RMB1,536.1 million.

20221231 MAERESHEEN BT

R ENEERBER/ARE136.188T-

Our audit procedures to assess the consolidation of
structured entities included the following:
HABaEBcIR HRNEFEATEEAT

e making enquiries of management and inspecting
documents relating to the judgment process over
whether a structured entity is consolidated or not
to assess whether the Group has a robust process
in this regard.

e BENHEREMREHEREEHABICIRE
BEMELMHEBIZEEBANESR UFEEE
BRI RIETEEE -

e selecting significant structured entities of each
key product type and performing the following
procedures for each structured entity selected:

e EERBIZEMBNTEENGEBLEIRBILY
H#IT M oIEAER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BN ETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Consolidation of structured entities (Continued)
EotEBLEE (F)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements: Subsidiaries
and non-controlling interests” and Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEME G BEHE B 1()H B 4 AR FFE# M S | 198 71 B LR B aE39 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

We identified the consolidation of structured entities
as a key audit matter because it involves significant
management judgment to determine whether a
structured entity is required to be consolidated by the
Group or not and because the impact of consolidating
a structured entity on the consolidated statement of
financial position could be significant.
HREEREBLEIBMASEENEHBEIRE
CZMEREAGARBRE AR EEBHMBRE
R B Re R EAN  FTAKRMEE & B EBR
Al EtEE

— inspecting the related contracts, internal
establishment documents and information
disclosed to the investors to understand
the purpose of the establishment of the
structured entity and the involvement the
Group has with the structured entity and to
assess management’s judgment over whether
the Group has the ability to exercise power
over the structured entity;

- RENHEBAR ABRIBRARMAKREE
WENEA NEREBLEEBNRYA S
NEREEEHEBICEBN2HEER W aT
BEEEUNESEHARBLEIBREEHSR
HE 7 8 T

— inspecting the risk and reward structure of
the structured entity including any capital
or return guarantee, provision of liquidity
support, commission paid and distribution
of the returns to assess management’s
judgment as to exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the Group’s involvement
in such entity;

- REEBLCEIRYRARERMOEERT
PREABCIBTEENEMERNSEH
WEHELONER RERBEENHZEE
AMEeMXNMKRENDES UTEERE
HESEALELEECERBOBRES MR
ESEBcEROERMO #EH kY
72 0] B [0 BV AR [E P VR HY #
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B EITHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

Consolidation of structured entities (Continued)
EOtEBLEE (&)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements: Subsidiaries
and non-controlling interests” and Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEME O BEHE [ HZ1()H B L AR HFFEFIM L | 198 71 BR LR B 7239 -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEETER EESPNAEHZER

inspecting management’s analyses of
the structured entity including qualitative
analyses and calculations of the magnitude
and variability associated with the Group’s
economic interests in the structured entity
to assess management’s judgment over the
Group’s ability to influence its own returns
from the structured entity;
BREEREBHEBLERENT BEEH
S UREEEHZAEABLELEIBNLE
MamthEMA BN E  UFEER
ERREEEFEHEREBEABCERATED
R E BE ) H

assessing management’s judgment over
whether the structured entity should be
consolidated or not.
TEEREERES AR EBAIENH
B o

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to structured
entities with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
ERUBHRRAPHASBCIROEEAREED
HeEREgERNRES R
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
reports, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

BN ETRE
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B EITHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁ%%ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ
T

BMOEBERREMBERRBEBELATF
EHRFRENERETNERERER
BERE LHABSEFNERLNER
BE-MBEERNZEBBRBRSE R
S - FRAPT O S & N A] A AE E At AR i o RAP
BMARARENAT HEMEMAL
BEHAEEREE-

EERERSKENRE BX FRER
EERBRC(EABEER) RITHESE
R—BEAHERGFERFBAEZER -BHRA
EHEENBRET MRS EEYE
REBRELLRATERES G P BR
REREFLHORERE ABERA
HmEEAMN -

EER(EABEFER) TR HB
B RMEAREHE YRFBEE
St R RABHAITTATIE:

o BAMAFEANFRLERTHDN
EHUBRRENERRAR  &KF
MEMBAEANAEE SRR
VERED EENEZER ER
BREABANER - BARFEERT
EESRER HE WEBER ER
Rt s xR BR A B ESl Z £ KRB
ERARFEREEFNEANERNE
RN AEERBNEREUNE
K86 ey R o

e HMBERFTMHEMAARIES AR
AR ENEAREA - EENLFEY
EEENANZEFHNERERKRE
Ho

e HEEFEMASTBRMBEEMN
fEh &t R EEN A E L -



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

BN ETRE
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B EITHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Siu Tung.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EpPtHER KR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 o & Z2022F12A31H [t F &

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)’000 unless otherwise indicated)

(BRXERBMIEN AERRARETTIR)

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bia AR¥TF T AR TFT
Guarantee and consulting fee income ¥R &5 & WA 458,913 569,231
Guarantee handling expenses BERFEEZL (121,575) (92,232)
Net guarantee and consulting fee BREEREFRA 337,338 476,999
income
Interest and handling fee income MEBRFEERA 390,660 585,655
Interest and commission expenses MERFEESIH (182,478) (354,567)
Net interest and handling fee income FMERFEEFHRA 208,182 231,088
Net fee and interest income BFEEBERMNEKA 2 545,520 708,087
Net trading (losses)/gains RSF (EBE) W (17,926) 88,577
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) [E 5% st (&518) 5,717 (298)
Other operating income, net Hqth 38 & F A 3 68,168 61,871
Operating income EE WA 601,479 858,237
Share of profits of associates HEE P EERNTERR 102,675 110,619
Reversal for guarantee losses EOEREEEESD 26 192,046 36,495
Impairment losses BEREBX 4 (237,122) (194,765)
Operating expenses giE 5(a) (509,787) (633,366)
Other net losses H b 5185 58 5(b) (39,739) (13,080)
Profit before taxation i B0 R 58 109,552 164,140
Income tax FRS# 6 (57,516) (51,798)
Profit for the year 7N R 52,036 112,342
Attributable to: BERN:
Shareholders of the Company ZN/NCI S 12,279 76,722
Non-controlling interests FESEHIMERE S 39,757 35,620
Profit for the year A EFE 52,036 112,342
Earnings per share sRWKE
Basic and diluted (RMB) EREWE 11 0.003 0.017
(&HEBEMNABAREL)

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EfERERAMGSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 o & 2022612431 H It FE
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)’000 unless otherwise indicated) (& E RAFT1EIN - HEBIAARE T TIIR)

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

o4 AREFRT ARETT

Profit for the year AEFE 52,036 112,342
Other comprehensive income REHAMERE W
for the year (after tax and (BRBERIEHES
reclassification adjustments) DERAER)
ltem that may be reclassified AR EEE RN
subsequently to profit or loss 15 H
Exchange differences on translation BE G INHT B A F] 10 (12,146) 3,595
of financial statements of B MR AIE K
overseas subsidiaries =&
Total comprehensive income for KEZFEWEEF 39,890 115,937
the year
Attributable to: SEEN:
Shareholders of the Company ZN/NELE S 133 80,317
Non-controlling interests FE 12 Il 14 2 39,757 35,620
Total comprehensive income for KEZEWEEF 39,890 115,937
the year

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial 51568 £296 B F7 & T 5 # 5K 7 Bt 75 3%
statements. HER)—EH o

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB AR R

At 31 December 2022 ¢ 722022412 H31H

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

31 December

(BRXERBMIEN ABRRARETTIR)

31 December

2022 2021
20224 20214
12A31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B #t AR¥EFTT AR TF T
Assets EE
Cash and cash equivalents EEE e 12 339,443 795,039
Time and restricted bank deposits HABR 7E31E A M &y E A 13 1,628,555 1,825,623
BERAFHRES
Trade and other receivables JE U R E A FE W SR IE 14 1,424,292 1,982,677
Receivables for factoring business FEU R 2 FRIE 15 410,670 1,112,142
Loans and advances to customers BHERRBK 16 2,195,620 1,311,542
Finance lease receivables U R B &R 17 48,854 91,665
Financial assets measured at fair value AR BETE R E# 19 2,072,995 1,820,210
through profit or loss STAEHESNEREE
Repossessed assets HKEEE 251,212 297,300
Investment property and property, REMEE KM ERE 20 940,522 1,074,019
plant and equipment B
Intangible assets B EE 21 87,492 92,359
Interest in associates REIRERE — BEhE 22 1,654,193 1,505,151
Goodwill EES 23 9,720 9,720
Deferred tax assets BIEFTIS & E 30(b) 420,037 439,658
Total assets BEHAG 11,483,605 12,357,105

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BB BRI R

At 31 December 2022 o 22022412 H31H

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

(BRXERABMEN AERRARETITIR)

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
20224 20214
12A31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥FIT AR T
Liabilities =R
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEER 24 2,472,690 3,177,905
Financial assets sold under EHREcREE 25 134,130 90,264
repurchase agreement
Deferred income REHETEES 180,464 234,482
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEES 26 130,083 322,129
Customer pledged deposits FARES 27 35,408 42 401
Accruals and other payables FE T N H M FE S BOE 28 472,357 335,129
Current tax liabilities EHFEHAE 30(a) 78,671 93,366
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 10,158 24,144
Total liabilites  ~~~~ &afE&gs 3,513,961 - 4,319,820
NET ASSETS BEE 7,969,644 8,037,285
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE 31
Share capital % < 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves ] 2,715,652 2,736,115
Total equity attributable to RRRBREERASBE 7,315,652 7,336,115
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEEHI RS 32 653,992 701,170
TOTAL EQUITY ERE 7,969,644 8,037,285

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB AR R

At 31 December 2022 o 72022912 A31H
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E S HBFTIEIIN HERUARETTIIR)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 KEE eI fE KRR ENR2023F3H30H

March 2023. FE o

Name: Zhang Jun Name: Ren Weidong (Company stamp)
Position: Chairman of the Board Position: Chief Financial Officer

RE EHR REHE
EFeFE BEEABE

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial S£156H £296 8 AT & M 71 18 5 7R Bf 7% 5
statements. EHER)—EBH o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtRREREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 o & 2022612431 H It FE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

(BRXERABMEN AERMRARETITIR)

KDARESEAEL
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange Surplus General Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests  Total equity
MERR -RER FEG% PEY $2
B& R EE ERDR REER BHOR EE  APEAE Nt B fit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT ARETZ AREFE ARETZ AREFL ARETZ AREFT AREFL AREFZ
Note316)  Note31(dl)  Note S1)  Note 31y Note Si(alfi)  Note 31y Note 32
Wisne)  WEsey M@ WEsiy)  HEsi  BEsia) Hits2
Balance at 31 December 2021  A2021E12831R A 4,600,000 1,270,924 464,480 5,074 207,221 370,646 47,770 7,336,115 701,170 8,037,285
and 1 January 2022 202251 B1A MEE
Changes in equity for 2022: N02FRERED:
Profit for the year SR - - - - - - 12,279 12,279 39,757 52,036
Other comprehensive income Bt e e - - - (12,146) - - - (12,146) - (12,146)
Total comprehensive income SekmAt - - - (12,146) - - 12,279 133 39,757 39,890
Purchase equity interest from ezl $-53 P - - (20,596) - - - - (20,596) (01,986) (112,582
non-controlling interests REE
Appropriation to surplus reserve  RRNB#ATE - - - - 15,522 - (15,522) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve  REI— kB ER - - - - - 24,093 (24,093) - - -
Capital injection in subsidiaries G EERETA AR - - - - - - - - 10,760 10,760
from non-controlling interests BAER
Divicends declared in respect HIRANHE - - - - - - - - (5,709) (5,709)
of the current year
Balance at 31 December 2022 2022F12531H &% 4,600,000 1,270,924 443,884 (7,072) 222,743 304,739 390,434 7,315,652 653,992 7,969,644

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

BESEROERDIT
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EORERREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 o & Z2022F12A31H [t F &
(BXESBAEIN HERARETITIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREREARS
Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange Surplus General Retained controling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests  Total equity
MERR —RERE I T I
B R EE BARNE nEEE  RHAE £ ROERE et 4 At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETn ARETT ARETrR
Note31c)  Nore 31l Nowe31ali)  Nore 31y Note STl Note 31 Note 32
s WEsey  HEsii  WEsiay)  HEsiai  BEsia) R4
Balance at 31 December 2020  A2020512831R A 4,600,000 1,270,924 464,008 1,479 179,097 348,578 529,240 7,393,326 703,612 8,096,938
and 1 January 2021 01 F1A1RNBE
Changes in equity for 2021: WNFEZEE:
Profit for the year FHE = = = - - - 76,722 76,722 35,620 112,342
Other comprehensive income EtEsAlE - - - 3,596 - - - 3,505 - 3,595
Total comprehensive income Sek@At = = = 3,595 = = 76,722 80,317 35,620 115,937
Purchase equity interest from ezl $53pd - - 472 S = - - 472 (6472) (5,000
non-controlling interests REE
Appropriation to surplus reserve  RRUB#ATE - - - - 28,124 - (28,124) - = =
Appropriation to general reserve  REI—KERER - - - - - 22,068 (22,068) - - -
Capital injection in subsidiaries ~ FFEFIEEHETA AR - - - - - - - - 6,000 6,000
from non-controling interests RAER
Dividends declared in respect HIRENAE - - - - - - (138,000) (138,000) (38,590) (176,590)
of the current year
Balance at 31 December 2021 2021F12 A1 BB E 4,600,000 1,270,924 464,480 5,074 207,221 370,646 47,770 7,336,115 701,170 8,037,285

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EORERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 o & 2022512831 H IFF &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

(BRXERABMEN AERMRARETITIR)

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARMFT AR TFT
Operating activities REEH
Cash generated from operations LEEHEANE S 12(b) 274,889 1,436,764
PRC income tax paid SATH TR R R (52,590) (81,193)
Net cash generated from RETBHELEBR ST 222,299 1,355,571
operating activities
Investing activities RETEE
Proceeds from sale of property, WEImE - BE REEMS 50,321 782
plant and equipment and other KIE
non-current assets
Proceeds from sale of investments W 01 4% & P15 508 226,844 628,470
Dividends received from financial WEH i & 9 4L 12,616 11,554
assets measured at fair value
Payments for the purchase of property, X{TEEWE - MWEN (12,331) (14,048)
plant and equipment and other REREMIERBEERN
non-current assets KIE
Purchase of equity interests of B IR SR S B B A R (51,626) (5,000)
subsidiaries from non-controlling A& #E =7 A5 /O 3R E
interests
Payments on other investments XA E M IR E B IR (77,001) (151,926)
Net cash generated from investing REZEHELRSFE 148,823 469,832

activities

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 o & Z2022F12A31H [t F &

(BRXERBMIEN AERRARETTIR)

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥TT AR¥TFT
Financing activities EEED
Proceeds from capital injection of MR AR R 10,760 6,000
non-controlling holders
Proceeds from interest-bearing BSEFEERKE MR 12(c) 868,283 1,506,833
borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing EBEFEBEREAESEIANBRE 120 (1,566,514) (3,500,871)
borrowings
Proceeds from financial assets sold BREEHDBSREENEES 120 97,677 =
under repurchase agreement
Repurchase of assets with repurchase BB EHBBEES HMNRE  120) (53,811) (72,000)
agreement
Interest paid EEEXNEZTNERE 12(c) (166,762) (277,270)
Capital element of lease rentals paid SHHNAEHESH ARSI 12(c) (14,667) (18,170)
Interest element of lease rentals paid SAHMBEERSHF ERD 12(c) (1,692) (3,185)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders — [A] AN 2 & A% B 37 1+ O A% 2, - (138,000)
of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  [A] 3F 2t il 14 1 25 % 1+ O IR B (5,709) (38,590)
Net cash used in financing activities E&EZEFEANR S EEHE (832,435) (2,535,253)
Net decrease in cash and EMESRDERE (461,313) (709,850)
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 1A1ERERREEEY 795,039 1,505,187
at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange HNEERSEHTE 5,717 (298)
rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents 12A31BREeRREEEY 12(a) 339,443 795,039

at 31 December

The notes on pages 156 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS R R MY &

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for financial instrument classified as
fair value through profit or loss (see Note 1(k)(i)) that are
stated at their fair value and liabilities from guarantees (see
Note 1(r)(i))-

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE

1

EREREE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EREFHEHEK (#)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) MEHRRNVEHNEE (&)
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS R R MY &

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

e Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —
cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
MESEZERBERIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(#F)
(CONTINUED)

(d) BB 27 K FEHMES

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders/shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with Note
1(k) depending on the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS R R MY &

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(k))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture (see Note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(n)(i), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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